
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 Cathy Murillo 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Gregg Hart 
Frank Hotchkiss  
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

MARCH 18, 2014 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


3/18/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting of March 4, 2014, and the special meeting of March 6, 
2014. 
  

2. Subject:  Joint Use Field Scheduling And Monitoring Agreement (570.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to 
enter into an agreement with the Santa Barbara Unified School District (SBUSD) 
for Field Scheduling and Monitoring. 
  

3. Subject:  Initiate Local Coastal Program (LCP) Update  (650.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 

the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Initiating a Local Coastal Program 
Update;  

B. Increase appropriations and revenues by $123,000 in the Miscellaneous 
Grants Fund for the California Coastal Commission LCP Planning Grant 
Award to partially fund the LCP Update; and 

C. Authorize the Community Development Director to execute a City 
Professional Services Agreement with Bolton Strategic Planning, in an 
amount not to exceed $65,000, for planning consultant services to 
supplement staff to complete the project. 



3/18/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  Increase In Appraisal Services For The Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge 
Replacement Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize an increase in the extra services 
amount with Schott & Company for real estate appraisal services for the Cabrillo 
Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project, Contract No. 388237, in the amount of 
$10,000, for a total project expenditure authority of $50,000. 
  

5. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Shoreline 
Beach Café (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Ten-Year Lease Agreement 
with Two Five-Year Options Dated as of March 18, 2014, with Kevin Boss, Steve 
Marsh, and Beachrok, Inc, a California Corporation, Doing Business As Shoreline 
Beach Café, at an Average Initial Base Rent of $14,342.06 Per Month, Allocated 
Seasonally, for the 5,095 Square Foot Restaurant Located at 801 Shoreline 
Drive, Effective April 17, 2014. 
  

NOTICES 

6. The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 13, 2014, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

7. Subject: Mission Canyon Community Plan (650.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Mission Canyon 
Community Plan for the Unincorporated Mission Canyon Area, Repealing 
Council Resolution No. 84-159 Regarding the Mission Canyon Specific Plan, and 
Making Environmental Findings Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act. 
  



3/18/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT’D) 
 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

8. Subject:  Police Department Update (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an oral presentation from the Police 
Chief regarding the Santa Barbara Police Department. 
  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

9. Subject:  Stage I Drought Update (540.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an update on the status of the current 
drought. 
  

10. Subject:  Contract For Modeling Services For Drought Water Rates (540.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a Contract for Modeling 

Services for Drought Water Rates in the amount of $36,798 to Raftelis 
Financial Consultants, Inc. (RFC); and  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures up to 
$10,000 to cover cost increases that may result from necessary change 
orders for additional unforeseen modeling work by Raftelis Financial 
Consultants, Inc. 

 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

11. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristine Schmidt, 
Acting Administrative Services Director, regarding negotiations with the 
Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, Hourly Bargaining Unit, Police 
Management Association, and Firefighters Association, and regarding salaries 
and fringe benefits for certain unrepresented management and confidential 
employees. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

  
ADJOURNMENT 



3/04/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
MARCH 4, 2014 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance 
Committee and Ordinance Committee met at 12:30 p.m.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy Murillo, 
Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, Interim City Attorney Sarah 
Knecht, Deputy City Clerk, Deborah L. Applegate. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins  (410.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through March 31, 2014. 
  
Documents: 
 March 4, 2014, report from the Acting Administrative Services Director. 
 
Speakers: 
 Staff:  City Administrator James Armstrong.  
 
 
 
 
 

MAR 18 2014 #1 



3/04/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

CEREMONIAL ITEMS  (CONT’D) 

1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins  (410.01)  (Cont’d) 
 
By Consensus, the Council approved the recommendation, and the following 
employees were recognized: 
 

10 YEARS 
Sarah Knecht, Acting City Attorney, City Attorney’s Office 

Allison De Busk, Project Planner, Community Development Department 
Brady Beck, Firefighter, Fire Department 

Eric Fairbank, Fire Engineer, Fire Department 
William Kavanaugh, Firefighter, Fire Department 
George Martinez, Fire Captain, Fire Department 

Brian Ricci, Fire Engineer, Fire Department 
Dennis Diaz, Police Information Technology Manager, Police Department 

Christopher Payne, Police Officer, Police Department 
15 YEARS 

Maryanne Knight, Computer Training Coordinator, Administrative Services Department 
Geoffrey Lancaster, Senior Building Inspector, Community Development Department 

Adam Ziets, Engineering Technician II, Public Works Department 
Frank Cruz, Senior Streets Maintenance Worker, Public Works Department 

25 YEARS 
Susan Reardon, Senior Planner II, Community Development Department 

Gina Sunseri, Fire Inspector II, Fire Department 
Scott Naganuma, Police Officer, Police Department 

Erik Engebretson, Harbor Patrol Officer, Waterfront Department 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers: Phil Walker, Brandon Morse. 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
The titles of the resolution and ordinance related to the item were read. 

4. Subject:  Local Coastal Program And Zoning Map Amendment For 415 Alan 
Road - Parcel A  (650.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 

the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Acknowledging Receipt of the 
California Coastal Commission's Resolution of Certification; and Accepting 
and Agreeing to a Suggested Modification for the Final Certification; and 
Agreeing to issue Coastal Development Permits for the total area included 
in the Certified Local Coastal Program; and 

(Cont’d) 



3/04/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
4. Subject:  Local Coastal Program And Zoning Map Amendment For 415 Alan 

Road - Parcel A  (650.04) (Cont’d) 
 
B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 

of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 28.12 
(Zone Map) of Title 28 of The Municipal Code Pertaining to the Rezoning 
of Property and Approving a Local Coastal Program Amendment at 415 
Alan Road - Parcel A. 

 
Documents: 

- March 4, 2014 report from the City Planner/Acting Community Director. 
- Proposed Resolution and Ordinance. 

  
 Public Comment Opened: 
  2:11 p.m. 
  
 Speakers: 
  There were no speakers. 
 
 Public Comment Closed: 
  2:12 p.m. 
 
 Motion: 

Councilmembers Francisco/Rowse to approve the item as recommended; 
Resolution No. 14-011. 

Vote:   
  Majority roll call vote (Noes:  Councilmember White). 
  
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2, 3, 5-9) 
 
The title of the ordinance related to the Item No. 3 was read. 
 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers Rowse/White to approve the Consent Calendar as 

recommended. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote. 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting of February 11, 2014. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 

(Cont’d) 



3/04/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2, 3, 5-9) (CONT’D) 

3. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Shoreline 
Beach Café  (570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, an Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Ten-Year Lease Agreement with Two Five-Year Options Dated as of March 11, 
2014, with Kevin Boss, Steve Marsh, and Beachrok, Inc, a California 
Corporation, Doing Business As Shoreline Beach Café, at an Average Initial 
Base Rent of $14,342.06 per Month, Allocated Seasonally, for the 5,095 Square 
Foot Restaurant Located at 801 Shoreline Drive, Effective April 11, 2014. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 4, 2014, report from the 
Waterfront Director; proposed ordinance.) 

   
5. Subject:  Law Enforcement Information Sharing Memorandum Of 

Understanding  (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City of Santa Barbara to 
participate in the Santa Barbara County Information Sharing System node 
(SBCISS) under the direction of the County of Law Enforcement Chiefs (CLEC), 
for the purposes of data sharing with the fifteen data sharing nodes throughout 
the state of California. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 4, 2014, report from the Chief of 
Police). 
  

6. Subject:  Authorization Of Emergency Underground Recycled Water Line 
Break Repair  (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve Emergency Purchase Order No. 78006 
with Lash Construction in the total amount of $31,117.87 for the emergency 
repair of the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Underground Recycled 
Water Pipeline. 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 4, 2014, report from the Acting 
Public Works Director). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3/04/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2, 3, 5-9) (CONT’D) 
 
7. Subject:  Purchase Order For Water Treatment Solids Disposal  (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Find it to be in the City's best interest to waive the formal bidding process, 

in accordance with Section 4.52.070(L) of the Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code; and 

B. Authorize the City's General Services Manager to issue a Purchase Order 
in the amount of $52,000 to Simi Valley Landfill for disposal of up to 1,000 
tons of water treatment solids. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations  (March 4, 2014; report from the Acting  
Public Works Director.  

 
8. Subject:  Rejection Of El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Tertiary 

Filtration Plant Replacement Project Bids  (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council reject the bids for construction of the El Estero 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Tertiary Filtration Plant Replacement Project, Bid 
No. 3688, and authorize the Acting Public Works Director to re-bid the project. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation  (March 4, 2014, report from the Acting 
Public Works Director). 

NOTICES 

9. The City Clerk has on Thursday, February 27, 2014, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Finance Committee Chair Francisco reported that the Committee met to review 
proposed rate increases for solid waste and waste water utility fees for the Fiscal Year 
2015.  The Committee approved the increase and will recommend to Council at a future 
date. 
 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Ordinance Committee Chair Rowse reported that the Committee met to finalize a 
proposed ordinance amending Municipal Code Title 17 pertaining to parking in 
Waterfront Parking Lots.  
 
 



3/04/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

10. Subject:   Average Unit-Size Density Incentive Program Review Process  
(640.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council provide direction to the Land Development 
Team staff related to the review process for Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) 
Incentive Program rental projects. 
  
Documents: 

- March 4, 2014, report from the Acting Community Development Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

  
 Speakers: 

- Staff:  Project Planner Irma Unzueta, City Planner Bettie Weiss, Principal 
Planner John Ledbetter. 

- Members of the Public:  Greg Reitz, Rethink Development; Doug Fell; Lisa 
Plowman. 

  
 Motion:   
   Councilmembers Francisco/White to refer to the Ordinance Committee to 

amend the AUD Ordinance to identify the parameters for requiring a 
Planning Commission concept review of certain AUD projects in the High 
Density areas. 

 Vote:  
Majority voice vote (Noes:  Councilmember Hart and Mayor Schneider).  

  
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

11. Subject:  Request from Councilmembers White and Rowse Regarding City 
Infrastructure  (530.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the request from Councilmember 
White and Councilmember Rowse regarding City Infrastructure. 
  
Documents: 

- March 4, 2014, report from the City Administrator. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff.  

  
 Speakers: 

- Staff:  City Administrator Jim Armstrong; Finance Director Robert Samario; 
Principal Civil Engineer John Ewasiuk.  

- Members of the Public: Tom Becker, Cars Are Basic; Scott Burns; Robert 
Burke; Bonnie Raisin.  

 (Cont’d) 



3/04/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS (CONT’D) 

12. Subject:  Request from Councilmembers White and Rowse Regarding City 
Infrastructure  (530.01) (Cont’d) 

 
 Motion: 
   Councilmembers White/Hotchkiss to direct staff to assemble a video 

featuring City infrastructure needs; and to appoint a sub-committee of 
Mayor Schneider, Councilmember Rowse and Councilmember White to 
monitor this effort and initiate the process of presenting the video to 
neighborhood groups after Council has previewed it.   

 Vote: 
   Unanimous voice vote. 

 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
 - Councilmember Francisco reported on his attendance at the Central Coast Water 

Authority where discussion was on alternative sources of water.  The Committee 
gave direction to staff to draft a contract with a water broker to find excess water 
elsewhere in State that can be transported through the State Water System.   

 - Councilmember Murillo reported on her attendance at the recent Parks and 
Recreation Committee and on her participation with the, “Read with Roosevelt” 
school program.  She complimented the Public Works staff for their diligent 
efforts during the recent storm.   

 - Councilmember Hotchkiss reported on his participation with the, “Read with 
Roosevelt” school program.  He also complimented Southern California Edison 
with their quick response to customers during the storm.   

 - Mayor Schneider thanked Mayor Pro Tem Murillo for her proceeding over the 
prior Council meeting while she attended meetings in Washington D.C. in her 
position as vice chair of the Santa Barbara County Association of Governments 
where Councilmember Hart was also in attendance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3/04/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

CLOSED SESSIONS 

12. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator  (440.05) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristine Schmidt, 
Acting Administrative Services Director, regarding negotiations with the 
Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, Hourly Bargaining Unit, Police 
Management Association, and regarding salaries and fringe benefits for certain 
unrepresented management and confidential employees. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

 
 Documents: 
  March 4, 2014, report from the Acting Administrative Services Director. 
 
 Time: 
  4:12 p.m. – 4:50 p.m. 
 
 No report made. 

  
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting in memory of Ruth Broida Harter, past National 
Commissioner of the National Anti-Defamation League and member of the Santa 
Barbara County Grand Jury, at 4:11 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  DEBORAH L. APPLEGATE 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



3/06/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
  MAR 18 2014 #1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
MARCH 6, 2014 

DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 9:34 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Frank Hotchkiss, Gregg Hart, Cathy Murillo, Randy Rowse, 
Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  Councilmember Francisco, Hart. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, Interim City Attorney Sarah 
Knecht, Deputy City Clerk Deborah L. Applegate. 
 
Councilmember Gregg Hart arrived at 9:40 a.m. 
 
The Planning Commission meeting was called to order, and the meeting continued in 
joint session. 
 
Planning Commissioners present:  Bruce Bartlett, June Belletto de Pujo, John P. 
Campanella, Sheila Lodge, Deborah L. Schwartz, Addison Thompson. 
Planning Commissioners absent:  Commissioner Chair Michael Jordan. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk has on Thursday, February 27, 2014, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, 
and on the Internet. 
 
 
 
 



3/06/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

WORK SESSIONS 
 
Subject:  Joint Council And Planning Commission Work Session Regarding 
Planning Division Workload And Program Activities (650.01) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a joint work session with the Planning 
Commission to receive status reports and discuss major work program activities in the 
Planning Division, including:  Long Range Planning & General Plan Implementation; 
Zoning Information & Enforcement; Design Review & Historic Preservation; and 
Development & Environmental Review. 
 
Documents: 

- March 4, 2014, report from the Assistant City Administrator. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  City Planner Bettie Weiss, Principal Planner II John Ledbetter, Senior 
Planner Danny Kato. 

 
Discussion: 
  City Planner Bettie Weiss discussed the activities of the Planning Division 

highlighting accomplishments, major work underway, and projects on hold or 
pending.  Principal Planner John Ledbetter discussed upcoming changes to the 
Local Coastal Program, which included goals, sea level rise, regional 
coordination and a timeline for future projects.  Senior Planner Danny Kato gave 
an overview of the update to the Zoning Ordinance which will be simplified and 
more flexible, and will provide planning staff with greater authority to approve 
minor items. 

 
Councilmembers and Planning Commissioners discussed the items, made comments, 
and their questions were answered.   
 
The Planning Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:35 a.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 11:35 a.m. 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  DEBORAH L. APPLEGATE 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  



Agenda Item No. 2 

File Code No.  570.07 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 18, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Recreation Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT: Joint Use Field Scheduling And Monitoring Agreement 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to enter into an agreement with 
the Santa Barbara Unified School District (SBUSD) for Field Scheduling and Monitoring.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The Field Scheduling and Monitoring Agreement with SBUSD originated in 2000 to 
facilitate increased public access to District sports fields in response to a community 
shortfall for field space. The City and District partnered to renovate four field facilities: 
La Cumbre, La Colina, and Santa Barbara Junior High schools and Franklin Elementary 
School. The agreement was implemented to maximize community use through an 
efficient, single source reservation process. The City would schedule and monitor use of 
the fields with revenue from permit fees reimbursing the City for costs to provide that 
service. Any revenue above expense would be held in a segregated account and 
reinvested in field improvements, as decided by the Joint Use Committee.  
 
Although the agreement functioned well for several years, over the last few years both 
agencies have raised concerns with aspects of the agreement. Primary issues have 
been poor field conditions; scheduling, use, and access issues at some campuses; the 
District not being reimbursed for community use of La Colina ball field lights; lack of 
incentive (revenue back) to individual schools in exchange for field access; and the 
District’s inability to provide adequate justification for field maintenance costs as 
specified in the Agreement to justify the $35,500/year the City paid towards that cost. 
 
Current Field Challenges  
 
Field use (and revenue) has declined over the last few years, primarily due to two 
factors: substandard field conditions and increased afterschool programming on two 



Council Agenda Report 
Joint Use Field Scheduling And Monitoring Agreement 
March 18, 2014 
Page 2 

 

campuses which has reduced public access to District fields. These changes have 
reduced the available field inventory from a peak of nine sports fields on four campuses 
to six fields on two campuses. Of the available six fields, only five currently meet the 
required minimum maintenance standards identified in the Field Scheduling and 
Monitoring Agreement. Due to anticipated SBUSD junior high afterschool sports 
programming in the current year, it is assumed that only three fields will be available for 
community user groups Monday through Friday during the peak requested times. 
 
After meeting several times throughout the year, the City and District came to an 
agreement to modify the program in a two-phased approach, leading to each agency 
scheduling and monitoring use of its own fields and the formation of a Field Scheduling 
Committee to coordinate community access to sports fields.  
 
Phase One – Fiscal Year 2014 – City Reduces Services from Four to Two Schools 
 
Historically, with the large number of programs and activities taking place on the 
campus, the City has done minimal scheduling of the Franklin field. Likewise, La 
Cumbre Junior High has had changing campus priorities, and with the addition of the 
After School Education and Safety (ASES) program at La Cumbre, field access and 
community use has diminished significantly. As of August 1, 2013, the Parks and 
Recreation Department stopped providing scheduling and monitoring services for these 
two school sites, and user groups were directed to the District to complete reservation 
plans.  
 
The Parks and Recreation Department continues to schedule three fields at Santa 
Barbara Junior High and two of the three fields at La Colina Junior High. Field #1 at La 
Colina is not being scheduled due to unplayable field conditions and safety concerns. 
Though improvements have been made at this site through increased rodent 
eradication and maintenance, field quality for safe play and inadequate lighting for 
evening requests remain a concern. Staff will continue to monitor the field quality with 
the hope that the full facility can return to the field scheduling inventory. 
 
Phase Two – Fiscal Year 2015 – District Assumes Management of All District 
Fields and Implementation of Program to Facilitate Community Access 
 
In Phase Two, the District assumes management of Santa Barbara and La Colina 
Junior High fields as well. In recognition of community needs and a shortfall of 
recreational field space, the City and District have agreed to put in place a program to 
facilitate streamlined access to and equitable use of City and District Fields. In order to 
have a program in place by Fiscal Year 2015, the City and District have formed a joint 
committee to develop and recommend a program and transition plan. The committee 
includes representation from each agency and/or user groups as follows: Parks and 
Recreation Department (2), SBUSD (2), youth user groups (2), and adult user groups 
(1). The committee began meeting in fall 2013 in order to recommend a plan to 
administration by May 1, 2014, for implementation on July 1, 2014. Direction from the 



Council Agenda Report 
Joint Use Field Scheduling And Monitoring Agreement 
March 18, 2014 
Page 3 

 

District is that the program provides youth groups a higher priority for use of District 
facilities and the recommended fee structure reflect a higher fee base for adult use of 
field space. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Anticipating reduced services, the Field Scheduling and Monitoring Program budget of 
$46,500, entirely supported by field rental fee revenue, was approved in the Fiscal Year 
2014 Parks and Recreation Department Miscellaneous Grants Fund budget. To the 
extent field rental fees collected do not cover the City’s cost of providing the scheduling 
and monitoring services, reserves estimated at $5,000 may be utilized.  
 
An additional $23,430 is also budgeted in the Parks Division General Fund budget to 
reimburse SBUSD for field maintenance supporting community field access afterschool 
and on weekends. As part of the revised agreement, the District agreed that the City 
maintenance commitment will be reduced, should the District not maintain minimum 
field maintenance standards for all covered field spaces over the term of this 
agreement.    
   
SUMMARY: 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department recommends that the City continue support of 
the Field Scheduling and Monitoring Agreement. The Fiscal Year 2014 agreement was 
approved at the October 22, 2013, SBUSD Board of Education meeting. The agreement 
is for one year ending June 30, 2014. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Sarah Hanna, Recreation Programs Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:    City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No. 3 
 

File Code No.  650.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 18, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Initiate Local Coastal Program (LCP) Update 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the 

Council of the City of Santa Barbara Initiating a Local Coastal Program Update,  
B. Increase appropriations and revenues by $123,000 in the Miscellaneous Grants 

Fund for the California Coastal Commission LCP Planning Grant Award to 
partially fund the LCP Update; and 

C. Authorize the Community Development Director to execute a City Professional 
Services Agreement with Bolton Strategic Planning, in an amount not to exceed 
$65,000, for planning consultant services to supplement staff to complete the 
project. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
On January 23, 2014, the City received a letter from the California Coastal Commission 
awarding the City $123,000 in financial assistance for the LCP Update (Attachment).  
This will be a two year work program culminating in a formal LCP Amendment 
application to the California Coastal Commission.  Council is being asked to accept the 
grant funds and adopt a resolution initiating the LCP Update process.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City has been awarded grant funding from the California Coastal Commission to 
update our Local Coastal Program (LCP). The LCP is comprised of a Land Use Plan 
(LUP) and an Implementation Plan (IP).  This is a two year work program that will build 
upon the information and policies adopted during the 2011 General Plan Update, the 
2012 Climate Action Plan, the 2012 Historic Resources Element and the 2013 Safety 
Element. This effort will require input and assistance from many City departments 
especially Waterfront, Parks and Recreation and Public Works.  The City Planning 
Commission will be involved reviewing draft chapters as they become available, 
considering public input, and formulating recommendations to Council.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Initiate Local Coastal Program (LCP) Update 
March 18, 2014 
Page 2 

 

The City’s LCP has not been updated since it was initially adopted and certified by the 
Coastal Commission in 1981.  A first important step has been working with Coastal 
Commission staff to compile a complete and accurate record of the original LCP 
materials and of every LCP amendment that has been certified by the Coastal 
Commission since 1981.  This has been a tremendous work effort tracking over 32 
years of policy and development activity in the City’s Coastal Zone. 
 
Once agreement is reached between City and Coastal Commission staff on the record 
or baseline LCP status, City staff will update and reorganize the document.  The LCP 
Update will address the following general topic areas: 
 

• Land Use  
• Shoreline Access 
• Recreation & Visitor Serving Facilities  
• Environmentally Sensitive Habitats and Other Natural Resources 
• Planning & Locating New Development (Ocean Dependent Uses) 
• Cultural Resources 
• Coastal Hazards 
• Visual Resources 
• Coastal Infrastructure 

 
Relevant existing LCP policies will be carried forward and included in the LCP update.  
The update will also include relevant policies in recently adopted City plans and new, 
digitized Coastal Zone maps with clear boundaries, land use and zoning designations.  
The land use map has already been reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Commission and City Council in 2013 as part of the citywide Zoning and General Plan 
Map Amendments project.   
 
That project identified minor adjustments necessary to create the required consistency 
between the General Plan map land use designations, boundaries and residential 
densities and the Zoning map of the City.  Besides these minor adjustments, no further 
land use or zoning changes are contemplated.  In the Coastal Zone, the amendments 
must be certified by the Coastal Commission prior to taking effect.  Coastal Commission 
staff discouraged the City from submitting the LCP mapping amendments in advance 
and without the LCP Update plans and policies.    
 
 
Sea Level Rise & Regional Coordination 
 
The impacts of climate change and sea level rise pose a threat to the California and 
Santa Barbara coastline, public infrastructure and coastal resources.  The California 
Coastal Commission (CCC) has made coastal zone planning for this a top priority.  In 
October, 2013, the CCC released a public review draft “Sea-Level Rise Policy 



Council Agenda Report 
Initiate Local Coastal Program (LCP) Update 
March 18, 2014 
Page 3 

 

Guidance” document.  Staff from several City departments reviewed the draft document 
and comments were submitted to the CCC in February 2014.  Regionally, several 
important studies are underway regarding sea level rise vulnerabilities and potential 
adaptation options.  They include: 
 

• Goleta Slough Vulnerability Assessment (Coastal Conservancy & SB Airport)  
• Santa Barbara Area Coastal Ecosystem Vulnerability Assessment (NOAA)   
• City of Goleta LCP  
• County of Santa Barbara Vulnerability Assessment  

 
An aspect in the LCP grant work program is a proposal to work with a group of Bren 
School graduate students to the sea level rise vulnerability assessments of vulnerable 
populations, critical infrastructure, environmentally sensitive resources, public access 
and recreational facilities.  The City’s existing policy framework to respond to sea level 
rise is found in the 2011 General Plan Update, and the 2012 Climate Action Plan, both 
of which have been formally adopted through the City’s public planning process.  
Additional adaptation policy was recently adopted in the 2013 Safety Element Update.   
 
Currently however, none of these policies have been incorporated into the City’s LCP.  
The next step in improving the City’s coastal adaptation to sea level rise is implementing 
these sea level rise adaptation policies in the Coastal Zone through certification by the 
Coastal Commission. 
 
Timeframe 
 
Staff is looking forward to completing this important long range planning effort.  
Processing Coastal Development Permits in a confusing and outdated policy context 
can add considerable delays to important City and private sector projects.  Working in 
tandem with Coastal Commission Staff, we plan to develop a new updated clear, 
concise and consistent LCP.   This will be quite an achievement and will benefit the City 
for years to come.  
 
The grant funding for this work requires that the City submit to the Coastal Commission 
a locally approved project by April 30, 2016.  Coastal Commission staff is prepared to 
work closely with the City to meet this deadline.  To get there, City staff will prepare 
updated chapters and submit to Coastal Commission staff for their review.   City staff 
will incorporate or respond to Coastal Commission input and then present the draft 
chapter to the City Planning Commission for review, comments and public input.   
 
The work product at the end of this two year program will be the formal application 
submittal of the LCP Update, as approved by City Council, to Coastal Commission for 
certification.   The certification process typically takes one to two years.  We are hopeful 
that early review and steady coordination with Coastal staff will facilitate the certification 
process. 



Council Agenda Report 
Initiate Local Coastal Program (LCP) Update 
March 18, 2014 
Page 4 

 

Over the next two years, the City’s Zoning Ordinance update will also be underway.  
Depending on the timing of that process, any recommended zoning changes in the 
Coastal Zone could be incorporated into the 2016 LCP Update submittal and/or vice 
versa. 
 
Initiation 
 
The Municipal Code requires that LCP amendments be initiated by resolution of the City 
Council (SBMC Sub-Section 28.44.250.D.1).   A resolution initiating the LCP Update 
has been prepared.  Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution and 
initiate the planning process. 
 
Professional Services Agreement 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Community Development Director to 
execute a City Professional Services Agreement for consultant assistance to manage 
the LCP Update process in an amount not to exceed $65,000.  Funds from the CCC 
grant will be used for this contract.  The remaining grant funds will be to fund short-term, 
hourly employees, including a Bren School graduate student, to further assist with the 
policy research and development. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Increase appropriations and revenues by $123,000 in the Miscellaneous Grants Fund 
for the California Coastal Commission LCP Planning Grant Award to partially fund the 
LCP Update. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT:    Coastal Commission Grant Award Letter (January 23, 2014)  
 
PREPARED BY: Elizabeth Limón, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Bettie Weiss, Acting Community Development Director  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



STATE OF CALIFORNI A-NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY 

CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION 
45 FREMONT, SUITE 2000 
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 941 05- 22 19 
VOICE AND TDD (41 5) 904- 5200 
FAX ( 4 1 5) 904- 5400 

January 23, 2014 

John Ledbetter, Principal Planner 
City of Santa Barbara 
630 Garden Street 
P.O. Box 1990 
Santa Barbara, CA 931 02 

Dear John, 

EDMUND G. BROWN, J R., GOVERNOR 

On January 8, 2014, the Coastal Commission adopted the staff recommendation and voted to 
award a grant to the City of Santa Barbara in the amount of$123,000. Congratulations on 
successfully receiving funding in this very competitive process. While we understand this is a 
reduction from the amount you applied for, the Commission had extremely limited funds to 
allocate and was unable to fund any proposals in full. This LCP planning work is of the highest 
priority for the Coastal Commission, and Commission staff is ready to work with you on your 
LCP. To help with the grant work, a Coastal Commission planner has been assigned to work 
with you on the project under the direction of the District Manager and the Deputy Director. The 
planner assigned to work on the grant is Melissa Ahrens (Melissa.Ahrens@coastal.ca.gov). The 
District Manager is Steve Hudson (Steve.Hudson@coastal.ca.gov), and the Deputy Director is 
Jack Ainsworth (John.Ainsworth@coastal.ca.gov). 

AWARD CONDITIONS 

This award was adopted with some conditions. Please refer to the action at: 
http:/ I documents. coastal. ca. gov /reports/2 014/ 1/W Sc-1-20 14. pdf. The staff recommendation was 
modified at the hearing to add an additional condition related to regional coordination that is not 
contained in this report. The conditions on your grant award include the following additional 
conditions: 

1. By February 10, 2014,1 the grantee shall submit a revised work program and budget that 
reflects an award of$123,000 with a $177,000 budget reduction from Task 2- Draft Sea
level Rise Vulnerability & Adaptation Report, Task 3- Draft Land Use Plan 
comprehensive update, Task 4- Draft implementation Plan update, and Task 5- Adopt 
Local Coastal Program update and submit to Coastal Commission for Certification. 

2. Sea level rise work completed under the grant program shall be coordinated regionally 
to the extent feasible between other jurisdictions and entities working on sea level rise 
within the same county or broader regional area relevant for sea level rise adaptation, 
such as the watershed, littoral cell, or area with similar geologic characteristics. 
Coordination includes early coordination meetings among the different entities, sharing 
of technical analyses and lessons learned, and consideration of regional adap tation 
policies. 

1 Updated from January 31", 2014. 

ATTACHMENT



2013-2014 California Coastal Commission LCP Grant Program 

NEXT STEPS 

We now need to prepare a contract for you. In order to do so, please submit the following 
information: 

);;> A revised work program, timeline, and budget for the project, reflecting the 
conditions mentioned above. Please provide the information via e-mail to Hilary 
Papendick at hpapendick@coastal.ca.gov as soon as possible, and by the revised 
deadline of Monday, February 10, 2014. Commission staffhas extended the deadline 
for submittal of the budget from January 31,2014 to February 10,2014 to allow extra 
time to make revisions as necessary. 

Please see the attached template and example to guide your updated budget and work program. 
In cases where modifications are not needed, you can copy the work program, timeline, and 
budget directly from your grant application. The budget should clearly show which tasks or 
portions of tasks the LCP grant funds will be supporting. Please note that all items invoiced 
must correspond to a line item in the budget and work program. Please do not e-mail documents 
in a PDF format. 

There are several important aspects to remember about the grant process: 

1. Please do not begin incurring costs that will be charged to this grant before the start 
date of the contract. 

2. As stated in Grant Administration Section ofthe LCP Grants Staff Report, funds will 
only be provided on a reimbursement basis for expenses already incurred. The Coastal 
Commission can only reimburse expenses that are incurred after the start date of the 
contract, and that have adequate documentation accompanying the invoice. In addition, 
the Commission can only reimburse invoices from the local jurisdiction as indicated on 
the contract, not an individual person or private entity. 

3. Since the funds for these grants were appropriated in FY 2013/2014, which ends on June 
30, 2014, all funded tasks must be completed by April30, 2016. Work tasks should 
begin on or before April30, 2014. 

Detailed invoicing instructions will be included in your contract ("Exhibit B- Budget" section). 

Please do not hesitate to contact me at (415) 904-5294 if you have any questions, either now or in 
the future as your project progresses. I look forward to working with you. 

Sincerely, 

m~ 
Hilary ~endick 
Statewide LCP Grant Manager 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA INITIATING A LOCAL COASTAL 
PROGRAM UPDATE  
 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s Land Use Plan (LUP) component of the Local Coastal Program 
(LCP) was originally certified by the Coastal Commission in January 1981, and has not 
been comprehensively updated in 33 years; 

WHEREAS, the City has recently adopted significant plans and policies including the 
2011 General Plan, the 2012 Climate Action Plan, the 2012 Historic Resources Element 
and the 2013 Safety Element Update and to implement these policies in the Coastal 
Zone requires an LCP Amendment and certification by the California Coastal 
Commission (CCC); 

WHEREAS, the Budget Act of 2013 provides an appropriation of $1 million for Coastal 
Commission grants in FY 13-14 to local governments to support Local Coastal Program 
(LCP) planning; 

WHEREAS, the California Coastal Commission, under the authority of the California 
Coastal Act, may provide financial assistance to support coastal planning and has 
approved a competitive grant program to provide such financial assistance for LCP 
planning;  

WHEREAS, the goal of the grant program is to develop new or updated LCPs in 
conformance with the California Coastal Act and to reflect current circumstances and 
new scientific information, including new understandings and concern for the effects of 
climate change; 

WHEREAS, grant proposals submitted under this grant program must complete land 
use plan and/or zoning work to either achieve submittal for certification of a Local 
Coastal Program (LCP) or an Area of Deferred Certification (ADC) or of an LCP 
Amendment to significantly update a certified LCP or LCP segments, including with 
special emphasis on effects of climate change and sea-level rise; 

WHEREAS, The City of Santa Barbara has an effectively certified LCP; 

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara, desires to pursue a project that would result in 
the completion and submittal for certification by the California Coastal Commission of an 
Amendment to update the LCP in part;  



2 

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara commits to and agrees to fully support a planning 
effort intended to update a certified LCP pursuant to the provisions of the California 
Coastal Act, with full public participation and coordination with the Coastal Commission 
staff; and 

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2014, the City received a letter from the CCC awarding the 
City $123,000 in financial assistance for the LCP Update. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA THAT the City initiates a 2-year LCP Update process that will conclude with 
the submittal of a formal LCP Amendment Application to the California Coastal 
Commission for certification. 



Agenda Item No.4 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 18, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Increase In Appraisal Services For The Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge 

Replacement Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize an increase the extra services amount with Schott & Company, 
for real estate appraisal services for the Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project, 
Contract No. 388237, in the amount of $10,000, for a total project expenditure authority 
of $50,000. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project (Project) involves the replacement 
of the structurally deficient bridge over Mission Creek, which requires the acquisition of 
multiple real property rights over 6 State Street, 21 Helena Avenue, and 13 (otherwise 
known as 15) East Cabrillo Boulevard (Real Property), as well as the removal of a 
portion of the restaurant building at 13 East Cabrillo Boulevard.  
 
The City Administrator authorized an appraisal contract on October 16, 2012, (Contract 
No. 388237) with Schott & Company (Schott) in the amount of $25,000 to provide 
appraisal services; and on May 21, 2013, Council authorized an increase in extra 
appraisal services in the amount of $15,000, for a Project expenditure authority total of 
$40,000 for appraisal services of the Real Property.  
 
CURRENT STATUS 
 
Staff made an offer on October 15, 2013 to the property owner, based on the original 
appraisal completed in September 2013; however, the offer was rejected by the owner.  
Recently, staff was successful in obtaining a Right of Entry from the property owner 
authorizing the City to have possession and use of the Real Property while negotiations 
continue on the compensation of the Real Property rights to be acquired.  In order to 



Council Agenda Report 
Increase In Appraisal Services For The Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project 
March 18, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

move forward in the negotiations on compensation, the appraisal report must be 
revisited and a new appraisal report prepared. The new appraisal report will consider 
valuation issues raised by the property owner, as well as consider new and updated 
information made available to Schott from the City, i.e., corrected square footage of the 
building. The increase in extra services with Schott in the amount of $10,000 is 
necessary to cover the cost of the additional scope of work to prepare the new report, 
respond to comments from the City and an independent third party appraiser, finalize 
the report, and to provide some allowance for extra services that may be required.   
 
It is now necessary to request an additional $10,000, which will result in a total contract 
amount of $50,000.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
FUNDING  
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 

 
 

APPRAISAL SERVICES CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Base 
Contract 

Change Order 
 

Total 
 

Initial Contract Amount $25,000 $0 $25,000 

First Increase in Services $0 $15,000 $15,000 

Proposed Increase $0 $10,000 $10,000 

Total $25,000 $25,000 $50,000 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Increase In Appraisal Services For The Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project 
March 18, 2014 
Page 3 
 

 

 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs. 
 

 
ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 

*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

 CITY SHARE FHWA SHARE TOTAL PROJECT 

Design $1,060,000 $2,640,000 $3,700,000 

Right of Way    
Appraisal Services by 
Schott & Company 

$4,588 $35,412 $40,000 

Proposed Increased Costs 
by Schott & Company 

$1,147 $8,853 $10,000 

Other Appraisals & 
Administration Costs 

$173,580 $616,315 $789,895 

Purchase Costs $414,412 $3,198,598 $3,613,010 
Relocation Assistance $39,915 $308,076 $347,991 
Subtotal Right-of-Way 
Phase 

$633,642 $4,167,254 $4,800,896 

Construction $1,649,400 $12,730,720 $14,380,120 

PROJECT TOTAL $3,343,042 $19,537,974 $22,881,016 
 
The Purchase Costs were determined from the just compensation amounts based on 
the original appraisal report and do not take into consideration any increase that may 
result from the negotiations. 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Streets Fund to cover the increased costs 
of the appraisal services. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer/ 

MAW/sk  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca Bjork, Acting Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



 1 MAR 18 2014 #5 
  330.04 

ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA APPROVING A TEN-YEAR LEASE AGREEMENT 
WITH TWO FIVE-YEAR OPTIONS DATED AS OF MARCH 
18, 2014, WITH KEVIN BOSS, STEVE MARSH, AND 
BEACHROK, INC, A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION, DOING 
BUSINESS AS SHORELINE BEACH CAFÉ, AT AN 
AVERAGE INITIAL BASE RENT OF $14,342.06 PER 
MONTH, ALLOCATED SEASONALLY, FOR THE 5,095 
SQUARE FOOT RESTAURANT LOCATED AT 801 
SHORELINE DRIVE, EFFECTIVE APRIL 17, 2014. 
 

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
10-Year Lease with Shoreline Beach Café, Effective April 17, 2014, is hereby approved. 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
File Code No.  650.09 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 18, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Mission Canyon Community Plan  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Approving the Mission Canyon Community Plan for the Unincorporated Mission 
Canyon Area, Repealing Council Resolution No. 84-159 Regarding the Mission Canyon 
Specific Plan, and Making Environmental Findings Pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
In the early 1980’s a number of septic systems in the unincorporated Mission Canyon 
area were failing or substandard in the unincorporated Mission Canyon area and Santa 
Barbara County was required by the Regional Water Quality Control Board to address 
this situation. On August 13, 1984, a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) between the 
County and City of Santa Barbara was adopted with a provision that sewer service for 
some areas of the Canyon would be provided by the City contingent upon the adoption 
of a County Specific Plan approved by the City.  The purpose of the Specific Plan was 
to address growth inducement and planning issues, which would allow the City to know 
how many parcels would receive sewer service. On October 23, 1984, the Mission 
Canyon Specific Plan was approved by the City Council and Specific Plan 3 (SP-3) was 
adopted for the unincorporated Mission Canyon area.  The JPA states that any 
amendments to the Specific Plan must be approved by both the City Council and 
County Board of Supervisors. The primary reason for the City to review amendments to 
the Specific Plan is with regard to providing City sewer services to a large portion of the 
unincorporated area. The City also provides water service to the entire plan area.  
 
The 1984 Specific Plan was very broad and did not have many policies to guide 
development in the Mission Canyon area. In 2006, the County Board of Supervisors 
appointed a Mission Canyon Planning Advisory Committee (MCPAC) to support County 



Council Agenda Report 
Mission Canyon Community Plan 
March 18, 2014 
Page 2 

 

Staff in the process of updating the Specific Plan. An outcome of the early community 
meetings with County Staff and the MCPAC was a decision to not amend the current 
Mission Canyon Specific Plan. Instead the Specific Plan would be replaced with a 
Community Plan, similar to other County Community Plans, which would provide more 
detailed development standards, resource protection and design standards (see 
Attachment 1 for more detail).  
 
The JPA that required development of the 1984 Specific Plan is not proposed to be 
revised. Review of the proposed MCCP by the City Council is consistent with the JPA. 
Additionally, with no proposed increase in density, the number of parcels being served 
by City sewer services remains consistent with the JPA County of Santa Barbara 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
City Review of the Mission Canyon Community Plan (MCCP) 
 
The proposed Plan is a growth management tool to guide future development within 
resource and infrastructure constraints. The Plan includes more specific and up-to-date 
goals, policies, and development standards that reflect the community’s desire to 
preserve neighborhood character. The Plan provides recommendations on the 
following: 

• Enhancing fire safe practices;  
• Planning for post-disaster recovery;  
• Balancing fuel management and sensitive biological resources; 
• Improve parking, pedestrian, and bicyclist circulation; and  
• Guiding site design, and other characteristics of new or remodeled structures. 

 
Once approved by the City and County, the Plan will become a part of the County’s 
General Plan. Since the inception of the MCPAC, City Staff have been involved in 
reviewing and commenting on the MCCP. A primary concern during staff’s review was 
ensuring the MCCP would not result in increased density. Because many parcels north 
of Foothill Road are on steep slopes, with poor soils, and native habitat, and also 
Mission Canyon being within a high fire hazard area, the MCCP does not propose 
changes to zoning that would increase density. In fact, the future potential build out of 
the area is actually less than previously understood, due to a better quantification of 
developable parcels and more stringent requirements for secondary dwelling units. 
 
City staff also provided input on issue areas that would intersect with the City, including: 
traffic, fire protection, water quality, water service, and resource protection. During the 
seven year period since the MCPAC was formed, City and County Staff have 
collaborated on these common issues. Additionally, the City’s Single Family Design 
Board and the Planning Commission have provided input on draft documents related to 
the MCCP. Through all of the staff collaboration and the public hearings, the MCCP was 
refined at each significant milestone.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Mission Canyon Community Plan 
March 18, 2014 
Page 3 

 

This mutual effort was reflected at a Joint County and City Planning Commission 
hearing on November 21, 2013. At the hearing, the Commissions focused their 
discussion on issue areas that overlap jurisdictional boundaries: sewer and water 
service, fire protection/hazards, and flooding and drainage. The City Planning 
Commission voted unanimously to recommend the City Council approve the Mission 
Canyon Community Plan, with minor revisions, which are reflected in the current 
document. The Planning Commission also recommended adding a policy to ensure 
future collaboration between City and County staff on future improvements to the 
Mission Canyon Road corridor. 
 
Environmental Review of the MCCP 
 
Consistent with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the County is the lead 
agency and the City is the responsible agency for environmental review. Additionally, a 
memorandum of understanding (MOU), dated November 13, 2008, between the City 
and County stated the responsibilities of each party and general agreements for each 
phase of environmental review. An environmental impact report (EIR) was prepared for 
the MCCP and significant and unavoidable (Class I) impacts were identified in the areas 
of Biological Resources, Cultural and Historic Resources, Fire Protection, and Traffic 
and Circulation. Feasible mitigation measures to lessen or avoid environmental impacts 
identified in the draft EIR and revised draft EIR were incorporated into the MCCP as 
policies or development standards. Significant, but mitigable, impacts were identified in 
the areas of Visual Resources, Air Quality, Biology, Cultural Resources (cumulative),  
Fire Protection, Geology, Public Facilities, Transportation and Circulation (intersection 
of Mission Canyon Road and Mountain Drive), and Water Quality and Drainage.  
 
On February 18, 2014, the County Board of Supervisors certified the Final EIR, without 
changes, and made the necessary CEQA findings, including a statement of overriding 
considerations for the Class I impacts. As the responsible agency, the City Council will 
consider the Final EIR and also make the necessary findings. 
 
Conclusion 
 
After the City Council approves the Mission Canyon Community Plan, the final action for 
this joint effort is for the Board of Supervisors to take action on the MCCP. That Board 
hearing is currently scheduled for April 1, 2014. The Board adoption of the MCCP will 
make it part of the County’s General Plan and it will be implemented through the 
County’s zoning ordinance. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The MCCP will not result in additional parcels being served by City sewer or water 
services. The MCCP includes stringent water conservation measures, which will be 
implemented with a request for new sewer or water service from the City, and also as 
part of ongoing outreach to all customers of City water service.  



Council Agenda Report 
Mission Canyon Community Plan 
March 18, 2014 
Page 4 

 

NOTE: The documents listed below have been separately delivered to the City 
Council for their review and are available for public review in the City 
Clerk’s Office: 

 
• Mission Canyon Community Plan dated December 2013 
• Mission Canyon Community Plan EIR dated November 2013 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 

1. County of Santa Barbara Board Letter dated February 18, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY: Peter Lawson, Associate Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Bettie Weiss, City Planner/Acting Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

AGENDA LETTER 
 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 407 

Santa Barbara, CA  93101 

(805) 568-2240 

Agenda Number:  

 

Department Name: Planning and 

Development 
Department No.: 053 
For Agenda Of: Set Hearing on 2/4/14 for 

2/18/14 and 4/1/14 
Placement:   Administrative (on 2/4/14) 

Departmental (on 2/18/14 

and 4/1/14)  
Estimated Tme:   1 Hour on 2/18/14 and 30 

minutes on 4/1/14 
Continued Item: No  
If Yes, date from:  
Vote Required: Majority  

 

 

 

TO: Board of Supervisors  

FROM: Department 

Director(s)  

Glenn S. Russell, PhD., Director, Planning and Development, 

568-2085 
 Contact Info: Jeffrey S. Hunt, AICP, Deputy Director, Long Range Planning,  

568-2072 

SUBJECT:   Mission Canyon Community Plan Adoption 
 

County Counsel Concurrence  Auditor-Controller Concurrence  

As to form: Yes  As to form: N/A     

Other Concurrence:  N/A   
 

Recommended Actions:  

On February 4, 2014, set a hearing for February 18, 2014 to: (1) certify the Mission Canyon Community 

Plan Final Environmental Impact Report and forward the certified Final Environmental Impact Report to 

the City of Santa Barbara City Council and (2) set a hearing for April 1, 2014 to consider 

recommendations of the City of Santa Barbara City Council and County Planning Commission to adopt 

the Mission Canyon Community Plan Case No. 13GPA-00000-00008 and consider recommendations of 

the County Planning Commission to: (1) amend text and maps of the Land Use Element of the Santa 

Barbara County Comprehensive Plan Case No. 11GPA-00000-00005; (2) amend text and maps of the 

Circulation Element of the Santa Barbara County Comprehensive Plan Case No. 11GPA-00000-00006; 

(3) amend the Santa Barbara County Land Use and Development Code Case No. 11ORD-00000-00032; 

(4) amend the Santa Barbara County Area Zoning and Zoning Overlay map of the Santa Barbara County 

Land Use and Development Code Case No. 11RZN-00000-00004; and (5) adopt a resolution adopting 

the Mission Canyon Residential Design Guidelines.   

 

A.  On February 18, 2014, your Board should consider the following actions: 

 

1. Make the required California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) findings for the Mission 

Canyon Community Plan Final Environmental Impact Report (Attachment B of Attachment 1); 

ATTACHMENT



Mission Canyon Community Plan Adoption 

Board of Supervisors Hearing of February 4, 2014 

Page 2 of 9 

 

2. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (09-EIR-02) (Attachment 2) and adopt the 

Statement of Overriding Considerations (Attachment B of Attachment 1) and Mitigation 

Monitoring Program (Attachment 3); 

 

3. Forward the certified Final Environmental Impact Report, CEQA Findings, Statement of 

Overriding Considerations, and Mitigation Monitoring Program to the City of Santa Barbara City 

Council for their consideration and approval of the Mission Canyon Community Plan 

(Attachment 4);  

 

4. Set a hearing on the departmental agenda of April 1, 2014 to consider recommendations of the 

County Planning Commission and City Council on the Mission Canyon Community Plan. 

 

B.  On April 1, 2014, your Board should consider the following actions: 

 

1. Make the required California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) findings for the Mission 

Canyon Community Plan Final Environmental Impact Report (Attachment B of Attachment 1) 

and adopt the Statement of Overriding Considerations (Attachment B of Attachment 1) and 

Mitigation Monitoring Program (Attachment 3); 

 

2. Adopt a Resolution (Attachment 5) rescinding the Mission Canyon Area Specific Plan and 

adopting the Mission Canyon Community Plan, Case No. 13GPA-00000-00008; 

 

3. Adopt a Resolution (Attachment 6) adopting amendments to the Land Use Element and map by 

adoption of the Mission Canyon Community Plan, Case No. 11GPA-00000-00005;  

 

4. Adopt a Resolution (Attachment 7) adopting amendments to the Circulation Element and map by 

adoption of the Mission Canyon Community Plan, Case No. 11GPA-00000-00006; 

 

5. Waive full reading into the record of the Ordinance, Case Nos. 11ORD-00000-00032 and 

11RZN-00000-00004 amending Section 35-1 of Chapter 35 of the County Code, the Santa 

Barbara County Land Use and Development Code; and 

 

6. Adopt an Ordinance, Case No. 11ORD-00000-00032 (Attachment 8) amending Section 35-1 of 

Chapter 35 of the County Code, the Santa Barbara County Land Use and Development Code; 

 

7. Adopt an Ordinance, Case No. 11RZN-00000-00004 (Attachment 9) amending Section 35-1 of 

Chapter 35 of the County Code, the Santa Barbara County Land Use and Development Code by 

amending the Santa Barbara County Zoning Map and adopting Mission Canyon Community Plan 

Zoning, Mission Canyon Community Plan Zoning Overlay, and Mission Canyon Community 

Plan Environmentally Sensitive Habitat map; and 

 

8. Adopt a Resolution (Attachment 10) adopting the Mission Canyon Residential Design Guidelines 

(Attachment 11). 

 



Mission Canyon Community Plan Adoption 

Board of Supervisors Hearing of February 4, 2014 

Page 3 of 9 

 

Summary Text: 

The Mission Canyon Community Plan (MCCP) provides detailed policies for the Mission Canyon Plan 

Area (Plan Area), consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  The MCCP addresses a range of issues 

including fire protection, circulation and parking, visual and aesthetic resources, and environmental 

resources and constraints.   

 

Background: 

Plan Area 

 

The Plan Area is located in the South Coast of Santa Barbara County within the First Supervisorial 

District, north of and adjacent to the City of Santa Barbara. The Plan Area totals 1,120 acres and 

supports low to medium density residential development, recreational areas, and undeveloped open 

space.  It includes 1,140 parcels and the following land uses: 977 residences, one institution/government 

facility (County Fire Station 15), Santa Barbara Woman’s Club (Rockwood), Rocky Nook County Park, 

and Santa Barbara Botanic Garden.   

 

Background 

 

In 1984, the County and City of Santa Barbara (City) approved a Joint Powers Agreement for 

Wastewater Collection, Treatment, and Disposal in the Mission Canyon Area and adopted the Mission 

Canyon Area Specific Plan (Specific Plan) as a growth management tool related to providing new sewer 

service to portions of the Plan Area.   

 

In 2006, the County Board of Supervisors (Board) directed Planning and Development Long Range 

Planning Division to update the Specific Plan and prepare residential design guidelines.  The update 

culminated in the proposed MCCP (Attachment 4), Residential Design Guidelines (Design Guidelines, 

Attachment 11), Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) amendments (Attachment 8), and associated 

Comprehensive Plan and Ordinance amendments.   

 

Similar to the Specific Plan, the MCCP is a planning and growth management plan that addresses future 

development in the Plan Area. There are no proposed land use or primary zone changes and, therefore, 

the MCCP does not increase density or add new land uses.  However, it does propose new goals, 

policies, development standards, and actions that enhance fire safe practices, address on-street parking 

issues, improve multimodal circulation, protect biological resources and water quality, and preserve 

neighborhood character.  The Planning Commission staff report and memo contains additional 

information regarding the MCCP (Attachments 12 and 13). 

 

MCCP Adoption Process 

 

The procedure to update the Specific Plan and adopt the MCCP is contained in the Specific Plan Section 

6.3, Amendment Process.  The Specific Plan specifies that “[t]he Plan and any amendment thereto must 

be adopted by both the County and City…No amendment to the Mission Canyon Area Specific Plan 

shall be enacted by the Board of Supervisors unless it has also been adopted by the Santa Barbara City 

Council.”  Detailed below is the process the County has followed:   

 



Mission Canyon Community Plan Adoption 

Board of Supervisors Hearing of February 4, 2014 

Page 4 of 9 

 

1. Hold a joint County/City Planning Commission hearing to consider specific MCCP topics of 

common interest between the City and County.  Enact separate County/City Planning 

Commission recommendations on the topics of common interest at the joint session.  The County 

Planning Commission conceptually approves a recommendation to the Board on the topics of 

common interest.  The City Planning Commission approves a recommendation to the City 

Council to consider the FEIR, make the necessary findings, and approve the MCCP.   

2. Hold a subsequent County Planning Commission hearing to consider recommendations to the 

Board on the remaining topics of the MCCP, LUDC amendments, Design Guidelines, Final 

Environmental Impact Report (FEIR), and Comprehensive Plan amendments.   

3. Hold a Board hearing to certify the FEIR and adopt the CEQA Findings, Statement of Overriding 

Considerations, and Mitigation Monitoring Program and forward the certified FEIR to the City 

of Santa Barbara City Council (City Council). 

4. Hold a City Council hearing to consider the certified FEIR, CEQA Findings, Statement of 

Overriding Considerations, and Mitigation Monitoring Program and consider approval of the 

MCCP. 

5. Hold a Board hearing to consider the City Council’s action on the MCCP, adopt the CEQA 

Findings, Statement of Overriding Considerations, and Mitigation Monitoring Program and 

consider adoption of the MCCP, Design Guidelines, LUDC amendments, and Comprehensive 

Plan amendments.   

 

Step 1 was completed on November 21, 2013 when a joint County/City Planning Commission hearing 

was held focusing on the following topics of common interest of the MCCP:  Public Services (water), 

Wastewater, Fire Protection/Hazards, and Flooding and Drainage.  The City Planning Commission also 

provided several comments on the Circulation and Parking section of the MCCP.  After the joint hearing 

was adjourned, the County Planning Commission considered recommendations on the remaining MCCP 

topics.  The City Planning Commission recommended that the City Council consider the Final EIR and 

make the necessary findings pursuant to CEQA, rescind Resolution 84-159 (adopting specific Plan No. 3 

for the unincorporated Mission Canyon Area), and adopt a resolution approving the MCCP.   

 

Step 2 was completed on December 5, 2013 when the County Planning Commission made a series of 

recommendations regarding Comprehensive Plan amendments, LUDC amendments, Design Guidelines, 

FEIR and adoption of the proposed MCCP.  The Planning Commission Action Letter contains the 

Planning Commission’s full recommendations (Attachment 1). 

 

Step 3 is anticipated to occur at the Board hearing of February 18, 2014.  Step 4 is scheduled for March 

11, 2014.  Step 5 is scheduled for April 1, 2014.   

 

MCPAC Process 

 

The Board appointed a Mission Canyon Planning Advisory Committee (MCPAC) to set goals and 

develop recommendations for the Design Guidelines and Specific Plan update (Resolutions 06-365, 09-

221, and 11-120).  A total of 33 MCPAC meetings, 4 public workshops, and 31 subcommittee meetings 

were held to develop the draft Design Guidelines, MCCP, and LUDC amendments.   

 

Project Summary 

 

The project includes the following related components:  



Mission Canyon Community Plan Adoption 

Board of Supervisors Hearing of February 4, 2014 

Page 5 of 9 

 

Mission Canyon Community Plan (Case 13GPA-00000-00008).  The MCCP would replace the 1984 

Specific Plan.  The draft final MCCP (December 2013) includes new or amended policies, development 

standards, and actions proposed as mitigation for potentially significant impacts to the environment and 

incorporates changes recommended by the County and City Planning Commissions. 

 

Residential Design Guidelines.  The Design Guidelines are intended to provide reasonable and objective 

guidance for homeowners, developers, and designers to define and maintain the character of a 

neighborhood.  The County Planning Commission did not recommend any changes to the Design 

Guidelines.   

 

Mission Canyon Community Plan Final Environmental Impact Report (09EIR-00000-00002).   The 

FEIR addresses potentially significant environmental impacts associated with the project.  The County 

Planning Commission did not recommend any changes to the FEIR.   

 

Land Use and Development Code Amendments (Case 11ORD-00000-00032).  The LUDC amendments 

would implement policies, development standards, and action items from the MCCP.  At the hearings of 

November 21, 2013 and December 5, 2013, the County Planning Commission recommended several 

changes to the LUDC amendments, described under Planning Commission Recommendation below and 

in Attachment 13. 

 

Land Use Element Amendments (Case 11GPA-00000-00005).  Minor amendments are proposed to the 

Land Use Element text and maps to include appropriate references to the MCCP and adopt the MCCP 

Land Use Designations and Parks and Trails maps.  The County Planning Commission did not 

recommend any changes to the amendments.   

 

Circulation Element Amendments (Case 11GPA-00000-00006).  Minor amendments are proposed to the 

Circulation Element text and maps to include appropriate references to the MCCP and adopt the MCCP 

Circulation Element map.  The County Planning Commission did not recommend any changes to the 

amendments.   

 

County Zoning Map Rezone (Case 11RZN-00000-00004).  An amendment is proposed to the Santa 

Barbara Area Zoning and Zoning Overlay map to remove zoning designations and references to the 

Specific Plan depicted on the map and replace them with the MCCP Zoning, MCCP Zoning Overlay, 

and MCCP Environmentally Sensitive Habitat maps. The primary zoning designations are not changing 

but the project proposes two new overlay zones: Environmentally Sensitive Habitat-Mission Canyon 

(ESH-MC) and Scenic Corridor-Mission Canyon (SC-MC).  The County Planning Commission did not 

recommend any changes to the amendments.   

 

MCCP Highlights 

 

The Specific Plan was a growth management tool designed to guide future development within resource 

and infrastructure constraints. The proposed MCCP builds upon this original policy framework and 

narrative by focusing on new goals, policies, and development standards to reflect the community’s 

desire to preserve neighborhood character; enhance fire safe practices; plan for post-disaster recovery; 

balance fuel management and sensitive biological resources; improve parking, pedestrian, and bicyclist 

circulation; and guide the siting, design, and other characteristics of new or remodeled structures within 



Mission Canyon Community Plan Adoption 

Board of Supervisors Hearing of February 4, 2014 

Page 6 of 9 

 

Mission Canyon. Given the significant constraints in this area, most notably the high fire hazards, no 

land use designations or zoning changes are proposed in the MCCP. 

 

The County Planning Commission staff report (Attachment 12) highlights the subject areas that were 

jointly reviewed by the County/City Planning Commissions (i.e., Public Services (water), Wastewater, 

Fire Protection/Hazards, Flooding and Drainage, and Circulation and Parking) and the remaining 

significant issues addressed by the proposed goals, policies, actions, and development standards 

contained in the MCCP.  The development standards have been crafted to address recurrent problems 

and issues which, up to now, have been handled case-by-case with mixed outcomes.  These development 

standards also are intended to provide better guidance and predictability within the development review 

process to the overall benefit of project applicants, community members, and decision-makers. 

 

Residential Design Guidelines 

 

Mission Canyon is a unique residential community in a setting that is not patterned after a typical urban 

or suburban subdivision.  The Design Guidelines are intended to preserve the characteristics that 

residents value, while also allowing flexibility in design of new and remodeled homes that reflects an 

eclectic tradition.  The Design Guidelines guide, educate, and motivate homeowners, developers, and 

designers to create projects that contribute to community design objectives and provide tools to help the 

Board of Architectural Review (BAR) fully evaluate development proposals.   

 

Summary of Environmental Analysis 

 

In 2008, the Board adopted Resolution 08-346 initiating the MCCP, Design Guidelines, and LUDC 

amendments for environmental review.  The Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) was circulated 

for public review from March to April 2011 and the County and City held public comment hearings in 

April 2011.  A Revised DEIR was prepared based on comments relating to the number of residential 

units that should be counted in baseline and buildout projections after the 2009 Jesusita Fire.  The 

Revised DEIR included an updated Project Description as well as updated Air Quality, Fire Protection, 

and Traffic and Circulation sections to reflect new information. The Revised DEIR was circulated for 

public review from February to April 2013 and a public hearing was held in March 2013.  Responses to 

the comments on the DEIR and Revised DEIR are included in Section 9.0 of the FEIR.  Feasible 

mitigation measures identified in the DEIR and Revised DEIR were incorporated into the MCCP as 

revised or additional policies and development standards designed to lessen or avoid environmental 

impacts.  Significant and unavoidable (Class I) impacts were identified in Biological Resources, Cultural 

and Historic Resources, Fire Protection, and Traffic and Circulation.   

 

Planning Commission Recommendations 

 

During the joint County/City Planning Commission hearing on November 21, 2013, the Planning 

Commissions requested changes that clarified the text and standards in the Public Services (water), 

Wastewater, Fire Protection/Hazards, Flooding and Drainage, and Circulation and Parking sections of 

the MCCP.  For example, the Planning Commissions recommended to add Action CIRC-MC-3.1 to 

highlight the community’s desire for a collaborative effort to improve multimodal connections along 

East Los Olivos Street (in the City of Santa Barbara) and Mission Canyon Road (in the County).  

Because Mission Canyon is a largely built-out community, the County Planning Commission also 

requested several new actions to encourage retrofits of existing homes, for example three new actions 



Mission Canyon Community Plan Adoption 

Board of Supervisors Hearing of February 4, 2014 

Page 7 of 9 

 

encourage homeowners to retrofit homes for fire resistant materials, energy efficiency, and efficient 

water use.   

 

The County Planning Commission also requested changes to the LUDC amendments.  For example, 

fence, wall, and gate height restrictions were proposed in the front setback area of the Scenic Corridor – 

Mission Canyon Overlay Zone (SC-MC) to preserve the aesthetic character and views of stately homes.  

The Planning Commission recommended changes to the SC-MC language to clarify that the permit 

requirements apply to the area within 80 feet from road centerline and 55 feet from right-of-way.  The 

Planning Commission also recommended changes to the fence, wall, and gate height limitations and 

Land Use Permit (LUP) requirements in the front setback areas of the entire Plan Area to encourage 

open neighborhoods and improve sight distance safety on narrow, winding roads.  Therefore, the 

Planning Commission recommended that in Mission Canyon, fences, gates, or walls 3.5 feet or less in 

height in the front setback areas would be exempt from requiring a LUP (in the rest of the County, 

fences, gates, and walls 6 feet or less in height in the front setback area are exempt from requiring a 

LUP).   

 

Due to the extreme fire hazard and concern about excessive on-street parking on narrow, winding roads, 

the MCCP includes an action to amend the LUDC to increase the residential parking requirement per 

dwelling unit from two to three spaces.  The LUDC amendments did not originally allow for a reduction 

in the required number of spaces unless such as reduction would preserve the integrity of a historic 

structure.  Due to public concern about the ability to provide the third parking space when an existing 

dwelling on a small, steep lot is enlarged or remodeled, the Planning Commission recommended several 

changes to the proposed residential parking requirement, including the ability reduce the required 

number of spaces if there is no space for the third parking space due to topography, lots configuration, or 

other physical constraints.   

 

On December 5, 2013, the Planning Commission requested a few additional changes to the MCCP, 

including a new Policy FIRE-MC-1 to develop and implement fire emergency early warning systems, 

and a couple of clarifications to the LUDC amendments and recommended that the Board of Supervisors 

adopt the proposed MCCP and LUDC amendments as revised at the hearing of December 5, 2013.  The 

Planning Commission also recommended that the Board of Supervisors direct Public Works to 

immediately implement Action CIRC-MC-9.1 from the MCCP, which directs the County to seek 

funding to paint and maintain fog line (road edge) striping on public roads to improve emergency 

ingress and egress.  This recommendation was included in Resolution 13-22 recommending that the 

Board adopt the MCCP and rescind the Mission Canyon Area Specific Plan (Attachment E of 

Attachment 1).   

 

Funding for Action CIRC-MC-9.1 is not currently available.  If Public Works is directed by the Board to 

immediately perform this work without an identified funding source, the Public Works Director has 

indicated that analysis, outreach, and implementation of this project would be funded using First District 

road maintenance funds.  This would reduce the annual funding available for other road maintenance 

work in the First District by the amount required to implement this action.  In addition, road striping 

location and other considerations would require coordination with the Office of Emergency 

Management, County Fire, California Highway Patrol, and Mission Canyon residents to ensure 

implementation is consistent with the MCCP Policy CIRC-MC-9 (i.e., prohibit parking on roads where 

it could encroach into a 10-foot travel lane or interfere with emergency ingress or egress, Fire 

Department access to fire fighting facilities, or safe pedestrian passage).   



Mission Canyon Community Plan Adoption 

Board of Supervisors Hearing of February 4, 2014 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 

Following the December 5, 2013 Planning Commission hearing, staff reviewed the LUDC amendments 

to ensure the proposed language is accurate and consistent with standard ordinance format.  Based on 

this review, staff made a few minor amendments to the LUDC amendments.  These amendments clarify 

the language or intent and do not result in any change to the substance of the ordinance standards.   

 

Tribal Consultation 

 

State planning law (SB 18) requires cities and counties to consult with California Native American 

tribes before amending or adopting any general or specific plan.  As noted in the Planning Commission 

staff report, the County sent letters to the Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians and the Coastal Band of 

the Chumash Nation with an invitation to consult regarding the MCCP.  Neither band responded to the 

invitation to consult.   

Fiscal and Facilities Impacts:  

Budgeted: Yes  

Fiscal Analysis:  

The MCCP, Design Guidelines and other components were prepared as part of a Board of Supervisors-

approved project.  Staff salaries and other costs were included in the County’s budget under Planning 

and Development Department, Long Range Planning Division’s Operating Expenditures (General Fund 

Contribution).  Most recently, Long Range Planning Division’s budget, including the Mission Canyon 

project, is on page D-168 of the County of Santa Barbara’s Operating Plan for 2013-2015.   

 

In total, staff spent approximately 11,500 hours totaling approximately $742,251 to prepare the MCCP, 

Design Guidelines and other components and present them to the Board of Architectural Review, 

Historic Landmarks Advisory Commission, City and County Planning Commissions, City Council, and 

Board of Supervisors and $120,855 on consultant fees for special studies associated with the FEIR (e.g., 

traffic, fire evacuation, biological resources, hydrologic evaluation).  There are no facilities impacts.  

Implementation of the MCCP occurs through the development review process and there will be no cost 

to the County.  Future MCCP action items would require Board approval and funding prior to 

implementation.   

Special Instructions:  

The Clerk of the Board shall publish a legal notice at least 10 days prior to the hearing on February 18, 

2014.  The notice shall appear in the Santa Barbara Independent.     

Attachments:  

1. County Planning Commission Action Letter with Attachments December 5, 2013 

2. Mission Canyon Community Plan FEIR 

3. Mitigation Monitoring Program 

4. Mission Canyon Community Plan 

5. Resolution – General Plan Amendment Adopting the Mission Canyon Community Plan 

6. Resolution – Land Use Element and Map Amendments 

7. Resolution – Circulation Element and Map Amendments  

8. Ordinance – Land Use and Development Code Amendments 



Mission Canyon Community Plan Adoption 

Board of Supervisors Hearing of February 4, 2014 

Page 9 of 9 

 

9. Ordinance – Zoning Map Amendments 

10. Resolution – Mission Canyon Residential Design Guidelines Adoption 

11. Mission Canyon Residential Design Guidelines  

12. County Planning Commission Staff Report, November 21, 2013 

13. County Planning Commission Memo, December 5, 2013 

Authored by:  

Rosie Dyste, Planner, Long Range Planning Division 

 
 
G:\GROUP\COMP\Planning Areas\Mission Canyon\Community Plan\Public Hearings\Board of Supervisors\February 2014 Adoption\Feb 4 2014\Draft BAL 2-4-14.docx 



1 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING THE MISSION CANYON 
COMMUNITY PLAN FOR THE UNINCORPORATED 
MISSION CANYON AREA, REPEALING COUNCIL 
RESOLUTION NO. 84-159 REGARDING THE MISSION 
CANYON SPECIFIC PLAN, AND MAKING 
ENVIRONMENTAL FINDINGS PURSUANT TO THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

 
WHEREAS, in August 1982 the County of Santa Barbara, with Clean Water Grant funding, 
began studies which examined various alternatives for resolving wastewater disposal 
problems in the Mission Canyon area; 
 
WHEREAS, in March 1983, the State Regional Water Quality Control Board established a 
moratorium on septic systems for portions of the area and established a deadline of July 1, 
1986, for installing sewers in the southern portion of the area; 
 
WHEREAS, the unincorporated Mission Canyon area is with the Sphere of Influence of 
the City of Santa Barbara; 
 
WHEREAS, on May 24, 1983, upon a request from the Board of Supervisors, the City 
Council reviewed the prospect of annexation of the area for connection to the City 
Wastewater collection system, and (i) determined that annexation was not cost effective, 
(ii) granted conceptual approval to provide wastewater to service to the area, (iii) 
authorized staff to negotiate with County staff to develop appropriate changes and a joint 
powers agreement, and (iv) directed staff and the Planning Commission to advise City 
Council on the mechanism that would provide for City review of future land use and 
development proposal concerning planning issues; 
 
WHEREAS, on August 13, 1984, the Board of Supervisors approved the Joint Powers 
Agreement which includes provisions for the Mission Canyon Area Specific Plan and 
referred the agreement to the City Council; 
 
WHEREAS, on October 2, 1984, the City Council authorized the execution of the Joint 
Powers Agreement; 
 
WHEREAS, on October 23, 1984, following the recommendation of the City Planning 
Commission, the City Council approved the Mission Canyon Area Specific Plan 
(Resolution 84-159); 
 
WHEREAS, November 21, 2006, the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors 
appointed a Mission Canyon Planning Advisory Committee (MCPAC) to develop 
recommendations and assist Long Range Planning Staff to develop Design Guidelines 
and update the Mission Canyon Area Specific Plan (Resolution 06-365); 



2 

WHEREAS, on June 4, 2008, the Santa Barbara County Planning Commission 
recommended the County Board of Supervisors initiate environmental review of the 
draft Mission Canyon Community Plan (MCCP); 
 
WHEREAS, on July 10, 2008, the City Planning Commission considered the draft 
MCCP, and forwarded comments to the County of Santa Barbara (PC Resolution 027-
08); 
 
WHEREAS, on September 16, 2008, the County Board of Supervisors initiated 
environmental review of the draft MCCP, Residential Design Guidelines, and Land Use 
Development Code amendments; 
 
WHEREAS, on June 30, 2009, the County Planning Commission held a public hearing 
on the Notice of Preparation of the Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and 
received public comments; 
 
WHEREAS, on April 7, 2011, the City Planning Commission held a public hearing on the 
Draft EIR and provided comments;  
 
WHEREAS, on February 20, 2013, a revised Draft EIR was circulated for public comment 
due to the following sections of the document that substantially changed as a result of 
updated baseline and buildout information: Project Description, Air Quality, Fire Protection, 
and Traffic and Circulation; 
 
WHEREAS; on November 21, 2013, a joint County of Santa Barbara and City of Santa 
Barbara Planning Commission public hearing was held to comment on the Draft MCCP 
and Final Draft EIR; 
 
WHEREAS, on November 21, 2013, the City Planning Commission unanimously voted to 
recommend that Council rescind the Mission Canyon Specific Plan (Resolution 84-159), 
consider the final EIR for the MCCP and make the findings, and approve the Mission 
Canyon Community Plan with revisions;  
 
WHEREAS, on February 18, 2014, the County Board of Supervisors certified the MCCP 
Final EIR (FEIR) (County Environmental Document No. 09-EIR-02, State Clearinghouse 
No 2009061066) and voted unanimously to approve a Statement of Overriding 
Considerations for the following categories: Biological Resources, Cultural and Historic 
Resources, Fire Protection, and Traffic and Circulation; 
 
WHEREAS, after consideration of the evidence presented, the testimony received, and 
deliberation by the City Council, the Council concluded that the Mission Canyon 
Community Plan Final EIR was adequate and prepared in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act, and that the Mission Canyon Community Plan can be 
approved; 



3 

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara and the County of Santa Barbara will continue to 
collaborate on issues of mutual interest identified in the Mission Canyon Community Plan, 
including, but not limited to emergency services mutual aid, water conservation, Mission 
Canyon Road improvements and resource protection; 
 
WHEREAS, there are no changes to the Joint Power Agreement and the additional units 
at buildout in the service area should not require new or altered sewer system facilities 
beyond that already accounted for when sewer service was first provided to this area 
under the 1984 Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) between the City of Santa Barbara and the 
County for Wastewater Collection, Treatment and Disposal in the Mission Canyon Area; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has conducted a duly noticed public hearing pursuant to the 
provisions of Chapter 3, Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. CEQA Findings 
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) findings pursuant to CEQA (California Public 
Resources Code §§ 21081, 21081.6) and State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of 
Regulations §15091): 
 

I. The City Council has read and fully considered the Mission Canyon Community 
Plan Certified Final EIR dated November 2013 and, has determined, in their 
independent judgment and analysis and on the basis of the whole record before the 
City Council, that 1) the document constitutes a complete, accurate, and good 
faith effort toward full disclosure of the project’s impacts and is an adequate 
environmental analysis of the project, 2) the document has been completed in 
compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act and Guidelines 

 
The location and custodian of the documents which constitute the record of 
proceedings upon which the project decision is based is the City of Santa Barbara 
Planning Division, 630 Garden Street, Santa Barbara, California. County of Santa 
Barbara Planning and Development Department, 123 E Anapamu Street, Santa 
Barbara, CA is the Lead Agency and custodian of documents for the environmental 
impact report. 

 
A mitigation monitoring and reporting program for the project has been made a 
condition of project approval and was adopted by the Santa Barbara County Board 
of Supervisors. Mitigation measures have been made enforceable through 
incorporation in the Mission Canyon Plan. 

 
II. Findings That Certain Unavoidable Impacts Are Mitigated to The Maximum Extent 

Feasible 



4 

 
The Final EIR (09EIR-00000-00002) for the project identifies ten significant 
environmental impacts which cannot be fully mitigated and are therefore considered 
unavoidable (Class I). Those impacts are in the following areas: Biological 
Resources, Cultural and Historic Resources, Fire Protection, and Traffic and 
Circulation. To the extent the impacts remain significant and unavoidable, such 
impacts are acceptable when weighed against the overriding social, economic, 
legal, technical, and other considerations set forth in the Statement of Overriding 
Considerations included herein. For each of the Class I impacts identified by the 
Final EIR (09EIR-00000-00002), feasible changes or alterations have been 
required in, or incorporated into, the project which partially avoid or substantially 
lessen the significant environmental effect, as discussed below: 

 
Biological Resources 
 
Impacts: The EIR identified significant project specific and cumulative impacts 
related to environmentally sensitive plant communities and habitat (Impact BIO-2), 
special status animal and plant species and habitat (Impact BIO-5), and cumulative 
impacts (Impact BIO-6). 
 
Mitigation: Beyond the programmatic mitigation policies included in the MCCP 
(MMBIO- 2.1), the EIR recommends eight mitigation measures (MM BIO-2.2, MM 
BIO-2.3, MM BIO-2.4, MM BIO-2.5, MM-BIO-5.1, MM BIO-5.2, MM BIO-5.3, and 
MM BIO- 5.4) which either amend draft policies, development standards, and 
actions or create new ones.  
 
Impacts to environmentally sensitive plant communities and habitat (Impact BIO-2) 
are reduced as follows: (1) MM-BIO-2.2 adds a new plant community category to 
the list of environmentally sensitive habitat (ESH); (2) MM-BIO-2.3 requires permits 
for vegetation removal in ESH through an amendment to the LUDC; (3) MM-BIO-
2.4 increases the riparian habitat buffer; and MM-BIO-2.5 improves protection of 
sensitive habitat and natural communities. These mitigation measures were 
incorporated into the proposed MCCP. No other feasible mitigation measures are 
known which would further reduce impacts. Under a reasonable worst-case 
scenario of full Plan Area buildout, impacts to sensitive plant species and habitat 
would not be fully mitigated and would remain significant and unavoidable. 
 
Impacts to special status animal and plant species and habitats (Impact BIO-5) are 
reduced as follows: (1) MM-BIO-5.1 amends the LUDC to include outdoor lighting 
regulations to reduce the impact of night lighting on sensitive species; (2) MM-BIO-
5.2 requires a mitigation and monitoring plan for projects that affect special status 
species and nesting birds; (3) MM-BIO-5.3 protects wildlife corridors; and (4) MM-
BIO-5.4 defines special status animal and plant species. These mitigation 
measures were incorporated into the proposed MCCP. No other feasible mitigation 
measures are known which would further reduce impacts. Under a reasonable 
worst-case scenario of full Plan Area buildout, impacts to special status animal and 



5 

plant species and habitats would not be fully mitigated and would remain significant 
and unavoidable.  
 
For cumulative impacts (Impact BIO-6), no feasible mitigation measures were 
identified to reduce cumulative impacts below a level of significance. Biological 
resources impacts occurring in areas outside the Plan Area are added to impacts 
expected in the Plan Area. The combined effect of cumulative development is 
anticipated to result in significant and unavoidable cumulative impacts to biological 
resources. 

 
Findings: City Council finds that feasible mitigation measures have been identified 
in the EIR and incorporated into the MCCP which lessen the significant 
environmental effects identified in the EIR to the maximum extent feasible; 
however, even with mitigation measures, impacts to biological resources would 
remain significant and unavoidable. City Council finds the MCCP’s residual impacts 
to biological resources are acceptable due to the overriding considerations that 
support approval of the MCCP discussed in the Statement of Overriding 
Considerations 

 
Cultural and Historic Resources 
 
Impacts: The EIR identified significant project specific and cumulative impacts 
related to the potential for impacts to unknown buried prehistoric and historic 
archaeological materials (Impact CR-2). 
 
Mitigation: Beyond the existing policies in the Land Use Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan, the EIR identifies three mitigation measures (MM-CR-1.1, 
MM-CR-1.2, and MMCR-1.3) which either amend draft development standards and 
actions or add new policies. MM-CR-1.1 incorporates programmatic history and 
archaeology and visual resource policies (for protection of the Mission Canyon 
Scenic Corridor, which is also historic), development standards, and actions (or 
comparable language) into the final MCCP. MM-CR-1.2 clarifies the process for 
performing archaeological surveys. MMCR- 1.3 protects traditional cultural, historic, 
and spiritual sites of concern to the Chumash Indians. These measures were 
incorporated in the final MCCP. The potential for residual project-specific and 
cumulative impacts on subsurface archaeological resources are considered 
significant and unavoidable because the ability to completely avoid significant 
impacts on all archaeological sites through project redesign or specifications is 
unlikely. 
 
Findings: The City Council finds that feasible mitigation measures have been 
identified in the EIR and incorporated into the MCCP which lessen the significant 
environmental effects as identified in the Final EIR to the maximum extent feasible; 
however even with mitigation measures, residual impacts to unknown buried 
prehistoric and archaeological resources remains significant and unavoidable. The 
City Council finds the MCCP’s residual impacts to cultural resources are acceptable 



6 

due to the overriding considerations that support approval of the MCCP discussed 
in the Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

 
Fire Protection 
 
Impacts: The EIR identified a significant impact related to exposure of people or 
structures to wildland fires (Impact FIRE-2), a significant impact to emergency 
ingress and egress and emergency responder’s ability to provide optimal protection 
to the citizens of Mission Canyon (Impact FIRE-3), and cumulative risk of wildfire 
impacts and emergency ingress and egress impacts (Impact FIRE-5). 
 
Mitigation: In addition to existing policies in the Santa Barbara County’s Seismic 
Safety and Safety Element of the Comprehensive Plan and the programmatic 
measures included in the MCCP, the EIR recommends eight mitigation measures 
(MM-FIRE-1.1, MM-FIRE-1.2, MM-FIRE-2.1, MM-FIRE-2.2, MM-FIRE-2.3, MM-
FIRE-2.4, MM-FIRE-2.5, and MM-FIRE-2.6) to mitigate the above-described 
impacts. These measures were incorporated into the MCCP Fire 
Protection/Hazards and Circulation and Parking sections. 
 
For Impact FIRE-2, MM-FIRE-1.1 incorporates programmatic land use (goal and 
policy recognizing land use constraints with respect to fire hazards) and fire 
protection goals, policies, actions and development standards (or comparable 
language) policies into the final MCCP. MM-FIRE-1.2 proposes future funding of 
additional fire prevention services to reduce the damage and severity of wildfires. 
No other feasible mitigation measures are known which would further reduce the 
impact. Due to the existing extreme high fire hazard, the impact of Plan Area 
buildout to people and structures would not be fully mitigated and would remain 
significant and unavoidable. 
 
There are six mitigation measures for the impact of Plan Area buildout potentially 
impacting emergency ingress and egress and emergency responder’s ability to 
provide optimal protection to the citizens of Mission Canyon (Impact FIRE-3). MM-
FIRE-2.1 incorporates programmatic fire protection policies, actions, and 
development standards and circulation development standard and policies (dealing 
with road improvements to provide space for emergency turnout zones, 
coordinating temporary road closures with the Fire Department, and building 
access roads and driveways to allow emergency vehicle access) into the final 
MCCP. MM FIRE-2.2 integrates new policies, development standards and an 
action identified in the Residential Parking Strategy project into the final MCCP. 
These new policies, development standards, and action are focused on clearing 
existing public roads of cars and encroachments into the public right-of- way to 
ensure adequate space is available for vehicle ingress and egress. MM FIRE- 2.2 
also clarifies how encroachments in the public right-of-way are handled during 
reconstruction of damaged and destroyed structures. MM-FIRE 2.3 requires 
dedication of emergency turnout zones at critical locations to allow additional 
evacuation traffic capacity. MMFIRE 2.4 promotes implementation of an optimized 



7 

traffic control plan during an evacuation, MM-FIRE 2.5 recommends development 
of new or alternate access routes, and MM-FIRE 2.6 requires a Fire Protection Plan 
as part of the condition of approval for Conditional Use Permits that include special 
events. No other feasible mitigation measures are known which would further 
reduce the impact. Due to the existing extreme high fire hazard, the impact of Plan 
Area on emergency ingress and egress would not be fully mitigated and would 
remain significant and unavoidable.  
 
For the cumulative risk of wildfire impacts and emergency ingress and egress 
(Impact FIRE-5), no additional feasible mitigation measures are available to avoid 
adverse environmental effects. 
 
Findings: The City Council finds that feasible mitigation measures have been 
identified in the EIR and incorporated which lessen the significant environmental 
effects as identified in the Final EIR to the maximum extent feasible; however, 
even with the mitigation measures, the project’s risk of fire impacts would remain 
significant and unavoidable. The City Council finds that residual significant impacts 
are acceptable due to the overriding considerations contained within the Statement 
of Overriding Considerations. 
 
Traffic and Circulation 
 
Impacts: The EIR determined that buildout of the Plan Area would contribute 
additional vehicle trips that would result in two significant impacts: (1) roadway 
segments that could exceed circulation element capacities (Impact TC-1); and (2) 
an increase in volume to capacity ratios at one intersection (Impact TC-2). The EIR 
also identified cumulative impacts on traffic and circulation (Impact TC-4). 
 
Mitigation: The EIR includes two new actions to mitigate Impact TC-1 and Impact 
TC-2. Both actions call for monitoring traffic to determine if the impact actually 
occurs. MMTC- 1 monitors and plans for traffic flow improvements on Mission 
Canyon Road south of Foothill Road and MM-TC-2 considers a new traffic signal at 
the intersection of Mission Canyon Road and Mountain Drive. No other feasible 
mitigation measures are known which would further reduce impacts. It is unknown if 
the mitigation strategies would be effective in reducing the impacts given potential 
policy conflicts between the improvements and preservation of historic and scenic 
resources. Therefore, the MCCP’s contribution to the roadway and intersection 
impacts would remain significant and unavoidable. 
 
For the MCCP’s contribution to cumulative impacts on traffic and circulation (Impact 
TC-4), no additional feasible mitigation measures are available to avoid adverse 
environmental effects. 
 
Findings: The City Council finds that feasible mitigation measures have been 
identified in the EIR and incorporated which lessen the significant environmental 
effects as identified in the Final EIR to the maximum extent feasible; however, even 



8 

with the mitigation measures, the project’s contribution to traffic and circulation 
impacts would remain significant and unavoidable. The City Council finds that 
residual significant impacts are acceptable due to the overriding considerations 
contained within the Statement of Overriding Considerations. 
 

II.1  FINDINGS THAT CERTAIN IMPACTS ARE MITIGATED TO INSIGNIFICANCE BY 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
The Final EIR (09EIR-00000-00002) identified several subject areas for which the 
project is considered to cause or contribute to significant, but mitigable 
environmental impacts (Class II). For each of these Class II impacts identified by 
the Final EIR feasible changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated 
into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental 
effect, as discussed below: 
 
Aesthetics 
 
Impacts:  The EIR identified potentially significant but mitigable project specific 
impacts resulting from buildout of the Plan Area potentially obstructing scenic vistas 
or views or changing the visual character of the area (Impact AES-2).  
 
Mitigation: In addition to existing policies in Santa Barbara County’s Land Use 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan and Ridgeline and Hillside Development 
Guidelines, MM-AES-1 incorporates land use (encouraging excellence in 
architectural and landscape design and directing use of the Residential Design 
Guidelines) and visual resource goals, policies, development standards, and 
actions (or comparable language) into the final MCCP.  MM-AES-2 amends the 
proposed Mission Canyon Scenic Corridor overlay zone development standards to 
ensure secondary front setbacks on corner lots are treated the same as primary 
front setbacks.  The impact would be less than significant with implementation of 
these mitigation measures.   
 
Findings: The City Council finds that MM-AES-1 and MM-AES-2 mitigate or avoid 
significant effects on aesthetics to a level of insignificance.  Future development 
under the MCCP would incorporate the above noted mitigation measures.   
 
Air Quality 
 
Impacts: The EIR identified potentially significant but mitigable project specific and 
cumulative air quality impacts from incremental short-term construction activity 
associated with buildout of the Plan Area (Impact AQ-1).   
 
Mitigation:  Measures included in the County’s Conditions of Approval and 
Mitigation Measures (revised February 2013) to reduce construction-related 
emissions would apply to construction activity associated with Plan Area buildout.  
These include measures to limit fugitive dust (PM10).  Projects implemented under 



9 

the MCCP would include standard fugitive dust control measures listed in MM-AQ-
1.   
 
Findings:  The City Council finds that MM-AQ-1 mitigates or avoids significant 
effects on air quality to a level of insignificance.  Future development under the 
MCCP would incorporate the above noted mitigation measure.    
 
Biological Resources 
 
Impacts: The EIR identified potentially significant but mitigable project specific and 
cumulative impacts by replacing the 1984 Specific Plan with the MCCP (Impact 
BIO-1) and introducing invasive plant species into sensitive habitat areas (Impact 
BIO-3).  The EIR identified and direct and indirect impacts to steelhead trout and 
other aquatic species habitats (Impact BIO-4).   
 
Mitigation: The 1984 Specific Plan includes a development regulation protecting 
native and specimen non-native trees.  The replacement of the 1984 Specific Plan 
with the MCCP resulted in Impact BIO-1 because the MCCP did not specifically 
protect specimen non-native trees.  MM-BIO-1 protects non-native trees that have a 
biological or ecological function, thus mitigating the impact.   
 
Impact BIO-3 is mitigated by MM-BIO-3 restricting use of invasive plant species in 
landscaping.  Impact BIO-4 is mitigated by programmatic mitigation in the MCCP 
(MM-BIO-4.1), enhanced protection of stream corridors (MM-BIO-4.2), and 
measures to provide for fish passage and mitigation for impacts to steelhead 
habitat (MM-BIO-4.3).   
 
Findings:  The City Council finds that MM-BIO-1, MM-BIO-3, MM-BIO-4.1, MM-
BIO-4.2, and MM-BIO-4.3 mitigate or avoid the significant effects on Biological 
Resources to a level of insignificance.  Future development under the MCCP would 
incorporate the above noted mitigation measures.    
 
Cultural and Historic Resources 
 
Impacts: The EIR identified potentially significant but mitigable cumulative impacts 
on historic buildings (Impact CUL-4).   
 
Mitigation: In addition to programmatic policies in the MCCP, the EIR identified MM-
CR-1.2 and MM-CR-1.3 to mitigate cumulative impacts described in Impact CUL-4.  
The mitigation measures are the same as those described for Class I impacts to 
archaeological resources described above.   
 
Findings:  The City Council finds that the inclusion of MM CR-1.2 and MM-CR-1.3 
in the MCCP would reduce impacts to a level of insignificance.  Future development 
under the MCCP would incorporate the above noted mitigation measures.   
 



10 

Fire Protection 
 
Impacts: The EIR identified potentially significant but mitigable project specific and 
cumulative impacts due to fire flow and pump station capacity deficiencies (Impact 
FIRE-4).   
 
Mitigation: MM-FIRE-3 clarifies that new projects must be served by fire hydrants 
that meet minimum flow and pressure requirements.   
 
Findings:  The City Council finds that the inclusion of MM-FIRE-3 in the MCCP 
would reduce impacts to a level of insignificance.  Future development under the 
MCCP would incorporate the above noted mitigation measure.   
 
Geologic Processes 
 
Impacts: The EIR identified potentially significant but mitigable project specific and 
cumulative impacts from exposure of structures to unstable earth conditions 
(Impact GEO-2) and expose of structures to excessive grading, expansive soils, 
and erosion (Impact GEO-3).   
 
Mitigation: In addition to policies in the Santa Barbara County Seismic Safety and 
Safety Element of the Comprehensive Plan and provisions in the Uniform Building 
Code, the EIR identifies MM GEO-1 and MM-GEO-2 that mitigate the above-
described impacts.  Both mitigation measures incorporate programmatic geologic 
hazard policies and development standards and hillside and watershed protection 
policies (or comparable language) into the final MCCP.   
 
Findings:  The City Council finds that MM-GEO-1 and MM-GEO-2 would reduce 
impacts to a level of insignificance.  Future development under the MCCP would 
incorporate the above noted mitigation measures.   
 
Public Facilities – Solid Waste 
 
Impacts: The EIR identified potentially significant but mitigable project specific and 
cumulative impacts to the Tajiguas Landfill from short (from demolition and 
construction) and long-term (project occupancy) waste (Impact PF-2).   
 
Mitigation: The EIR identifies MM-PF-1 to mitigate the above-described impact.  
The mitigation measure incorporates a programmatic waste reduction goal, policy, 
and development standard (or comparable language) into the final MCCP. 
 
Findings: The City Council finds that MM-PF-1 incorporated into the MCCP would 
reduce impacts to a level of insignificance.  Future development under the MCCP 
would incorporate the above noted mitigation measures.   
 
Public Facilities – Wastewater 



11 

 
Impacts:  The EIR identified potentially significant but mitigable project specific and 
cumulative water quality impacts from development of new onsite wastewater 
treatment systems (Impact PF-4).   
 
Mitigation:  The EIR identifies programmatic mitigation MM-PF-4.2 to mitigate the 
above-described impact.  MM-PF-4.2 incorporates proposed wastewater goal, 
policy, development standards, and action (or comparable language) into the final 
MCCP.   
 
Findings: The City Council finds that MM-PF-4.2 would reduce impacts to a level 
of insignificance.  Future development under the MCCP would incorporate the 
above noted mitigation measure.   
 
Transportation and Circulation 
 
Impacts:  The EIR identified potentially but mitigable impact on the capacity of the 
street system due to increased on-street parking demand at buildout (Impact TC-3).   
 
Mitigation:  The EIR identifies programmatic mitigation MM-TC-3 to amend the 
LUDC to increase the required number of residential parking spaces per dwelling 
unit.   
 
Findings: The City Council finds that MM-TC-3 incorporated into the MCCP 
reduces the impact to a level of insignificance.  Future development under the 
MCCP would incorporate the above noted mitigation measure.   
 
Water Resources, Drainage and Flooding 
 
Impacts:  The EIR identified potentially significant but mitigable project specific 
water resources impacts from Plan Area buildout potentially exposing some 
properties to flood hazards (Impact WR-2), temporary water quality impacts from 
erosion and sedimentation during construction (Impact WR-3), and long-term water 
quality and stormwater runoff impacts to the Mission Creek watershed (Impact WR-
4).    
 
Mitigation: For Impact WR-2, the EIR identifies mitigation measure (MM-WR-1.1) to 
incorporate programmatic flood hazard policy into the final MCCP and a new 
development standard to further reduce risks of flood damage (MM-WR-1.2).  For 
Impact WR-3, the EIR identifies programmatic mitigation measures (MM-WR-2.1) 
that minimize temporary impacts to water quality from construction and MM-WR-2.2 
that revises flooding and drainage policy and development standards to reduce 
redundancy, clarify the policy, and ensure consistency with best practices (MM-
WR-2.2).  For Impact WR-4, the EIR identifies MM-WR-3.1 to improve site design 
and onsite management of stormwater to the maximum extent practicable.   
 



12 

Findings: The City Council finds that MM-WR-1.1, MM-WR-1.2, MM-WR-2.1, and 
MM-WR-2.2 incorporated into the MCCP reduce impacts to a level of 
insignificance.  Future development under the MCCP would incorporate the above 
noted mitigation measures.   
 

II.2 FINDINGS THAT IDENTIFIED PROJECT ALTERNATIVES OR MITIGATION 
MEASURES ARE NOT FEASIBLE 
 
The Final EIR (09EIR-00000-00002), prepared for the project evaluated a No 
Project Alternative and a Reduced Buildout Alternative as methods of reducing or 
eliminating potentially significant environmental impacts. The City Council finds that 
the following alternatives are infeasible for the reasons stated: 
 
1. No Project Alternative 
 
The No Project alternative assumes that the 1984 Mission Canyon Specific Plan is 
not updated and policy direction for the Plan Area is not changed.  The projected 
buildout under the 1984 Specific Plan would result in an increase in allowable 
residential second units, and none of the policies, development standards, and 
actions of the MCCP would be implemented, including the policies for the 
Residential Parking Strategy project.   
 
The No Project Alternative would, therefore result in greater impacts on the 
following resources relative to the MCCP, in part due to the absence of protective 
policies that are provided in the MCCP:  
 

• Aesthetics/Visual Resources 
• Air Quality 
• Biological Resources 
• Cultural and Historic Resources 
• Energy 
• Fire Protection 
• Geologic Processes 
• Land Use 
• Police, Schools, and Parks 
• Wastewater 
• Water Resources: Drainage and Flooding 

 
The No Project Alternative would result in similar impacts on the following 
resources relative to the MCCP: 
 

• Air Quality:  Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
• Noise 
• Solid Waste 

 
The No Project Alterative would result in reduced impacts relative to the MCCP to: 



13 

 
• Transportation and Circulation 

 
The reduced Transportation and Circulation impact is not due to a reduction in daily 
trips but is the result of using a more permissive threshold for evaluating impacts.  
The No Project Alternative would evaluate impacts relative to the Santa Barbara 
County Comprehensive Plan’s Circulation Element standards, rather than the 
MCCP’s Circulation Element standards that impose a new roadway classification 
system.  The new roadway classification system uses road capacities and level of 
service standards consistent with the community’s desire to maintain semi-rural 
character.   
 
The No Project Alternative fails to achieve the basic objectives of the project, stated 
as follows: 
 
1. Replace the 1984 Mission Canyon Area Specific Plan with a Community 

Plan that reflects community goals as articulated by the Mission Canyon 
Planning Advisory Committee in the Vision Statement of the draft Mission 
Canyon Community Plan (see below).    

 
2. Approve Community Plan policies, development standards and actions to 

plan for the buildout of the plan area using existing Land Use densities and 
primary Zone District designations compatible with community character, 
with adequate services and infrastructure for public health and safety.   

 
The MCPAC articulated key goals for the plan as follows: 
 

• Maintain and enhance existing community qualities, including Mission 
Canyon’s natural scenic beauty and charm; 

• Improve fire safe practices including vegetation management, defensible 
space, hydrants and water supply, road safety, and emergency ingress and 
egress; 

• Protect public views of the ocean, mountains, and scenic corridors; 

• Provide for the reasonable use of property and limited additional 
development that is compatible with the natural terrain and with the scale 
and character of existing structures in the area; 

• Ensure that development does not exceed availability of adequate services 
and infrastructure to provide for public health and safety; 

• Develop plans for possible post-disaster recovery and reconstruction that 
balances the likely conflict between the desire for rapid recovery and the 
competing desire to rebuild a community more resistant to future disaster; 

• Protect sensitive habitats and other biological resources; 

• Protect watershed function, groundwater and surface water quality, and 



14 

prevent flooding and erosion; 

• Provide safe and efficient circulation systems and improve pedestrian and 
bicyclist access and safety; 

• Promote water conservation, resource recovery, green building practices, 
and energy conservation and generation; 

• Preserve open space; 

• Protect historic and cultural resources; and 

• Improve aesthetics through the application of Residential Design Guidelines. 
 
The No Project Alternative would not replace the 1984 Mission Canyon Area 
Specific Plan with a Community Plan.  It would also not achieve the key goals 
articulated for the Community Plan to maintain community qualities, improve fire 
safe practices, and protect sensitive habitats and watershed function.  Therefore, 
the City Council finds that the project is preferable to the No Project Alternative. 
 
2.  Reduced Buildout Alternative 
 
The Reduced Buildout Alternative assumes approval of the MCCP, to reduce 
buildout potential.  The Reduced Buildout Alternative analyzes the reduction of 
buildout potential through the use of two methods:  (1) downzoning and (2) slope 
density formulas to increase minimum lot size.   
 
Both the downzoning and slope density formulas would notably reduce the potential 
for additional residences from lots splits.  However, buildout of lots large enough for 
a lot split assumed under Plan Area buildout (based on existing zoning) is 
speculative and there are many limiting factors (e.g., onsite wastewater system 
suitability, environmentally sensitive habitat, landowner preference for a larger lot) 
not taken into account in the estimate.  Therefore, the number of additional 
residences due to lot splits may not be as high as estimated.       
 
Because buildout would be reduced, the Reduced Buildout Alternative would not 
result in increased impacts on any resources relative to the MCCP.  
 
The Reduced Buildout Alternative would result in similar impacts on the following 
resources relative to the MCCP: 
 

• Aesthetics/Visual Resources 
• Air Quality 
• Biological Resources (Class I) 
• Cultural Resources 
• Fire Protection 
• Geologic Processes 
• Noise 



15 

• Transportation/Circulation 
• Water Resources, Drainage, and Flooding 

 
The Reduced Buildout Alterative would result in reduced impacts relative to the 
MCCP on the following resources; 
 

• Air Quality:  Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
• Biological Resources (Class II) 
• Energy 
• Public Facilities 

 
Although the Reduced Buildout Alternative reduces environmental impacts relative 
to the project, the reduction would not be substantial enough to eliminate Class I 
impacts.  The City Council finds that the Reduced Buildout Alternative does not 
meet the basic objective of the MCCP to plan for the buildout of the Plan Area using 
existing land use densities and zone districts because it would require major 
rezoning.  The proposed MCCP was crafted to accommodate Plan Area buildout 
per the stated goals, rather than change existing plan area density.  Procedurally, 
reduced density by the downzoning method could result in creating a large number 
of non-conforming parcels.  Furthermore, although the slope density calculation 
results in a lower number of buildout units than under the project, there are 
proposed protective development standards for slopes in the MCCP that could 
result in an equivalent lower number of buildout units on slopes 20% or greater.  In 
summary, the proposed project achieves all the stated objectives and provides 
case-by-case protections that could provide the functional equivalent of reducing 
buildout.  Therefore, the City Council finds it preferable to plan for Plan Area 
buildout by incorporating the protective mitigating mechanisms in the MCCP as 
exemplified in the project rather than approve the Reduced Buildout Alternative.  
 

III STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Mission Canyon Community Plan (MCCP), incorporated herein by reference, 
contains a special set of goals, policies, development standards, and actions that 
apply to the Mission Canyon Plan Area. It is part of and consistent with the County 
Comprehensive Plan (general plan). However, the MCCP is tailored to a smaller 
geographical area and generally provides greater environmental and other benefits 
to the Mission Canyon Plan Area as compared to the County Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Final EIR (90EIR-00000-00002) for the MCCP states that the project will have 
unavoidable adverse environmental effects on biological resources, cultural and 
historic resources, fire protection, and traffic and circulation.  The City Council has 
balanced “the economic, legal, social, technological, or other benefits, including 
region-wide or statewide environmental benefits” of the project against these effects 
and makes the following Statement of Overriding Considerations which warrants 
approval of the project notwithstanding that all identified adverse environmental 
effects are not fully avoided or substantially lessened.  [CEQA Guidelines Section 



16 

15093(a)]  The City Council finds that the benefits of the “proposed project 
outweigh the unavoidable adverse environmental effects” and, therefore, “the 
adverse environmental effects may be considered ‘acceptable.’”  [CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15093(a)] 
 
Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081(b) and CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15043, 15092, and 15093, any unavoidable significant adverse 
environmental effects of the project are acceptable due to the following 
environmental benefits and overriding considerations: 
 
A. The MCCP provides for necessary and orderly development to 

accommodate population growth within urban areas within the planning 
horizon consistent with the goals and policies of the City of Santa Barbara. 

 
B. The MCCP retains urban development within land designated for urban 

uses in accordance with the County of Santa Barbara Comprehensive Plan 
Land Use Element Land Use Development Policy 3.  The environmental 
benefits include preserving natural and cultural resources in less developed 
rural areas. 

 
C. The MCCP provides for orderly economic and population growth within a 

reasonable time horizon in an area that has adequate public services (i.e., 
water, sewer, roads) in accordance with the County of Santa Barbara 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element Policies, the City of Santa Barbara 
General Plan, and consistent with the original Joint Powers Agreement for 
providing City sewer service to the unincorporated Mission Canyon Area. 

 
D. The MCCP protects hillsides, watersheds, and creeks with development 

standards for grading and required erosion control measures, management 
of stormwater runoff with Low Impact Development measures, and 
development prohibitions on extreme slopes in accordance with County of 
Santa Barbara Comprehensive Plan and City of Santa Barbara General 
Plan Policies.  These environmental benefits outweigh potential effects on 
other biological and cultural resources. 

 
E. The MCCP protects natural resources, preserves the area’s semi-rural 

character, and balances the needs of the future residents with the needs of 
existing residents. 

 
F. The MCCP provides for orderly development while requiring maximum 

effective and appropriate prevention measures to reduce fire hazards to the 
maximum extent feasible.  The MCCP’s policies support the County Fire 
Department’s Development Standards, and the County of Santa Barbara 
Comprehensive Plan and the City of Santa Barbara General Plan policies. 
The MCCP includes policies that support mutual cooperation between 
agencies for fire hazard prevention.  As a result, the MCCP provides 



17 

important economic, social, and environmental benefits. 
 
G. The MCCP policies protect and preserve archaeological and historical 

resources to the maximum extent feasible in accordance with the County of 
Santa Barbara Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element and Conservation 
Element and are also consistent with the City of Santa Barbara General 
Plan.   

 
H. The MCCP affords protection of the important natural resources of the 

various habitats within the Plan Area’s boundaries, and preserves the value 
of these lands for their important biologic, hydrologic, and aesthetic qualities 
in accordance with the County of Santa Barbara Comprehensive Plan 
Conservation Element, Preservation of Natural Systems, as well as the City 
of Santa Barbara General Plan. 

 
I. The MCCP contains an adequate circulation system that strives to achieve a 

balance between land use and roadway and intersection capacity in 
accordance with the County of Santa Barbara Comprehensive Plan 
Circulation Element.  Furthermore, the MCCP encourages alternative modes 
of transportation and multimodal transportation improvements in accordance 
with Circulation Element Policy C and the state’s Update to the General Plan 
Guidelines: Complete Streets and the County of Santa Barbara 
Comprehensive Plan Circulation Element. 

 
J. The MCCP provides clarity for future developers and land use regulators.  Its 

clearly defined policies and development standards will minimize future 
environmental review, time, uncertainty, and cost in the permit process. 

 
3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL REPORTING AND MONITORING PROGRAM 
 
Consistent with Public Resources Code Section 21081.6 and CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15091(d) the County to adopted a reporting or monitoring program for the 
changes to the project that it has adopted or made a condition of approval in order 
to avoid or substantially lessen significant effects on the environment. The 
monitoring program is designed to ensure implementation of the adopted mitigation 
measures to reduce significant effects on the environment. 
 
The mitigation measures are within the purview of the County of Santa Barbara and 
the City of Santa Barbara hereby delegates monitoring responsibilities to the 
County of Santa Barbara. 

 
SECTION 2: Joint Powers Agreement 
 
The proposed Mission Canyon Community Plan is equivalent to the Mission Canyon 
Specific Plan and no amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement is necessary. 
 



18 

SECTION 3: Mission Canyon Community Plan  
 
Repeal Resolution No. 84-159 (adopting Specific Plan No. 3 for the Unincorporated 
Mission Canyon Area), dated October 23, 1984, and approve the Mission Canyon 
Community Plan. 
 
SECTION 4: Annual Reporting & Monitoring 
 
The County shall provide an annual report to the City detailing implementation of the 
Mission Canyon Community Plan policies and any major projects that were approved or 
completed in the Plan area during the reporting year, as well as, courtesy review of 
discretionary projects in the Plan area.  
 
 



Agenda Item No.  8 
File Code No.  520.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 18, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Chief’s Staff, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Police Department Update  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive an oral presentation from the Police Chief regarding the Santa 
Barbara Police Department. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As requested by the Mayor and City Council in 2011, Police Chief Cam Sanchez will 
provide an oral presentation to Council regarding the status of the Police Department 
and its operations.  This presentation is part of a series of updates and will occur on a 
periodic basis. The following are some of the topics that will be covered: 
 

• Part 1 Crime Trends 
• Police Activities League/Explorers 
• New Version of Compstat 
• Elementary School Partnership 
• Employee Recognition Service Awards 

 
 
PREPARED BY: Cam Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Cam Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  540.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 18, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Stage I Drought Update  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive an update on the status of the current drought. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On February 11, 2014, Council declared a Stage I Drought and asked customers to 
reduce water use by 20%.  Council requested that staff keep them informed and report 
back monthly with a status update on the City’s water supplies, conservation efforts, 
and current work efforts. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Acting Water Resources Manager/JH/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca Bjork, Acting Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  10 
 

File Code No.  540.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 18, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Modeling Services For Drought Water Rates 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council: 
 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a Contract for Modeling Services for 

Drought Water Rates in the amount of $36,798 to Raftelis Financial Consultants, 
Inc. (RFC); and  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures up to $10,000 to cover 
cost increases that may result from necessary change orders for additional 
unforeseen modeling work by Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City manages the water supplies and the utility that provides water to its customers 
under the Water Fund. Revenue for the purchase of water supplies and management of 
the water utility is derived from rates and fees charged to water system customers or rate 
payers. On February 11, 2014, Council declared a Stage One Drought Condition, which 
called for a voluntary 20 percent reduction in water use by rate payers.  
 
While the area recently had a significant rainstorm, the rainfall was not enough to end the 
area’s persistent drought condition. Staff is currently planning for a possible declaration of 
a Stage Two Drought Condition. This declaration would include instituting temporary 
drought water rates to: 1) use pricing that encourages extraordinary water conservation,   
2) ensure the City’s Water Fund has adequate revenues associated with projected lower 
water sales, and 3) provide sufficient funds to finance necessary capital projects and 
possible water purchases.  
 
The intent of drought rates is to incentivize customers to conserve water while also 
ensuring the Water Fund remains revenue neutral.  Staff will present this item to the Board 
of Water Commissioners at their March 10, 2014 meeting to receive input for creating 
drought rates. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Modeling Services For Drought Water Rates  
March 18, 2014 
Page 2 

 

In June 2012, the City hired RFC through a competitive Request for Proposal process to 
perform a comprehensive study of the revenue needs and associated rates for the Water 
Fund. RFC’s scope of work included evaluating the revenue needs of the Water Fund for 
meeting financial obligations of operations, debt requirements, and capital needs, while 
also ensuring that the proposed rates comply with Proposition 218. Any adjustment in 
water rates must be done in compliance with Proposition 218 requirements, which is 
known as the Right to Vote on Taxes Act that voters approved in 1996. Proposition 218 
imposes procedural requirements (notice and majority protest) and substantive limitations, 
which include the requirement that the rates may not exceed the estimated cost of 
providing the service and must be reasonable, fair, equitable, and proportional.  
 
As RFC recently successfully provided the City with water rate modeling services and the 
Water Fund is currently operating under the water rates and rate structure created by 
RFC, staff recommends contracting with RFC to perform drought water rate modeling 
services. Staff has received an acceptable proposal from RFC in the amount of $36,798 to 
provide such services. Staff recommends authorizing change order authority of $10,000 
for additional unforeseen modeling work that may need to be performed by RFC. The 
scope of RFC’s work includes performing drought water rate analysis, considering different 
water demand reduction scenarios, providing drought rate alternatives, and updating the 
water model to reflect the final drought water rate structure.  
 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
RFC’s Water Financial Plan & Rate Study Report is available for Council review in the 
Council reading file and available for public review in the City Clerk’s office. There are 
sufficient appropriated funds in the Water Fund for the proposed drought water rate 
modeling services.  The Board of Water Commissioners heard this item at their March 10, 
2014 meeting and the Board voted 4-0-0 in support staff’s recommendations. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:  
 
In addition to generating the revenues necessary for operating and maintaining the water 
utility, water rates are an effective tool for encouraging water conservation. Creating and 
instituting drought water rates will send a stronger message for extraordinary water 
conservation, and will help to preserve the City’s remaining limited water supplies through 
this critically dry period. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Catherine Taylor, PE, Water System Manager/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca Bjork, Acting Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  11 
File Code No.  440.05 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 18, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Labor Negotiator 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code Section 54957.6, to consider 
instructions to City negotiator Kristine Schmidt, Acting Administrative Services Director, 
regarding negotiations with the Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, Hourly 
Bargaining Unit, Police Management Association, and Firefighters Association, and 
regarding salaries and fringe benefits for certain unrepresented management and 
confidential employees. 
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
PREPARED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Acting Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Acting Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOCX
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.PDF
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.PDF
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	MARCH 18, 2014
	AGENDA



